
Page # 1 of 2 Posted: August 2, 2013 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUES 286.0105:  ANY PERSON WHO DESIRES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION AT THIS MEETING WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR 
THIS PURPOSE MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED, WHICH SUCH 
WRITTEN RECORD IS NOT PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTE 286.26: PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT LAURA 
SMITH, 300 WEST PLANT STREET, WINTER GARDEN, FL 34787, (407) 656-4111 - 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
To: James Gentry – Chairman 

Jimmy Dunn -  Vice Chairman 
Kent Horsley 
Mark Maciel  
Mac McKinney 
Rohan Ramlackhan 
Eric Weiss  
 

Copy to: Mike Bollhoefer 
   Dan Langley 
   Ed Williams 
   Laura Smith 
   Stephen Pash  
   Kelly Carson 
 

RE: Agenda – August 5, 2013 - 6:30 PM 
Commission Chambers, City Hall 

 300 West Plant Street, Winter Garden 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
  
2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
  
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE JULY 1, 2013 MEETING  
  
 ANNEXATION, REZONING, FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT (PUBLIC HEARING) 
  
4. 750 S. Park Avenue - (Deloach Trust, Thomas & Dawn) 
 Annexation / FLU Map Amendment / Rezoning 
 Parcel ID #22-22-27-1084-01-150 

 
5. 1205 E. Fullers Cross Road - (Gilkey Organization, LLC) 
 Annexation / FLU Map Amendment / Rezoning 
 Parcel ID #12-22-27-0000-00-005 

 
6. 950 Vineland Road - (Carrasquillo, Crucita) 
 Annexation / FLU Map Amendment / Rezoning 
 Parcel ID #23-22-27-8199-00-100 
  
7. 948 Vineland Road - (Goncalves, Antonio) 
 Rezoning 
 Parcel ID #23-22-27-8199-00-090 
  
8. 700 Garden Commerce Parkway (Winter Garden Commerce Center) 
 Rezoning 
 Parcel ID #24-22-27-9385-00-200, etc. 
 

For More Information, Contact: 
Laura Smith 

Senior Planner 
City of Winter Garden  
300 West Plant Street 

Winter Garden, FL 34787 
407.656.4111 ext. 2026 

LSmith@wintergarden-fl.gov  

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD AGENDA  

mailto:LSmith@wintergarden-fl.gov


 

Page # 2 of 2 Posted: August 2, 2013 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUES 286.0105:  ANY PERSON WHO DESIRES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION AT THIS MEETING WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR 
THIS PURPOSE MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED, WHICH SUCH 
WRITTEN RECORD IS NOT PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTE 286.26: PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT LAURA 
SMITH, 300 WEST PLANT STREET, WINTER GARDEN, FL 34787, (407) 656-4111 - 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING. 

 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD AGENDA, CONTINUED…  

 PRELIMINARY & FINAL PLAT(S) 
 

9. 315 E Fullers Cross Road (Highland Groves) 
 Preliminary Plat 
 Parcel ID #11-22-27-0000-00-003 
 
10. 16303 Marsh Road (Crooked Lake Preserve) 
 Preliminary Plat 
 Parcel ID #05-23-27-0000-00-005 & 05-23-27-0000-00-008 
 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT UPDATES 
 

11. Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
 Ordinance 13-55 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

To the next regular Planning and Zoning Board meeting on Monday, September 9, 2013 
at 6:30 p.m. in City Hall Commission Chambers, 300 W. Plant Street, 1st floor. 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 1 
 

 
A REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 

JULY 1, 2013 
 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

Chairman James Gentry called the meeting of the City of Winter Garden Planning and 
Zoning Board to order at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall Commission Chambers. The invocation 
was given followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

The roll was called and a quorum was declared present. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chairman James Gentry, Vice-Chairman James Dunn, Board Members: Kent Horsley, Mac 
McKinney, Rohan Ramlackhan, and Eric Weiss. 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  
Mark Maciel (excused) 
 
STAFF PRESENT:   
City Attorney Kurt Ardaman, Community Development Director Ed Williams, Senior 
Planner Laura Smith, Senior Planner Stephen Pash, Planning Technician Maria Michaud and 
Customer Service Representative Kathy Rathel. 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Approval of minutes from the regular meeting held on June 3, 2013. 
 
Motion by Jimmy Dunn to approve the above minutes.  Seconded by Eric Weiss, the 
motion carried unanimously 6-0.  
 

4. PRESENTATION 
City Attorney Kurt Ardaman presented an overview of the Sunshine Law, quasi-judicial 
proceedings and ex parte communications as they affect the City of Winter Garden Planning 
and Zoning Board and its Members.  Included in the packet was a 9-page memorandum 
which was just a portion of what is covered by law but he explained these were the most 
common the Board would run into. 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 2 
 

The Sunshine Law provides a right of access to governmental proceedings at both the state 
and local levels and has three basic requirements: 1) reasonable notice that the meeting will 
occur, 2) meeting must be open to the public and located in a public place, and 3) minutes of 
the meeting must be taken.  The Sunshine Law applies to any gathering of two or more 
members of the same board discussing matters which will foreseeably come before that 
board for action and anything that solicits a response from another board member would be a 
violation of the Sunshine Law.  Additionally, all modes of correspondence in connection 
with city business are considered public record and should be forwarded to the City Clerk for 
recording.  If the communication is of a personal nature then it is not a public record. 
 
Quasi-judicial proceedings are where the Board applies a pre-existing set of rules or code 
used as a guideline and affecting a small number of people or a few parcels of property.  
These proceedings are entitled to the Sunshine Law protection, public record laws and due 
process and must be held in a public hearing.  Examples would be site plans, special 
exceptions, variances and rezoning.  When the Board creates a new broad central policy that 
affects many people or properties the hearing is considered legislative.  Examples would be 
comprehensive plan amendments or adoption of new ordinances. 
 
Ex parte communications between individual Members and/or others outside the context of 
the public hearing do not violate the Sunshine Law but may be challenged unless disclosed.  
The communications may be texts or even whispers and City Attorney Kurt Ardaman 
recommended Board Members refrain from either during meetings.  He also discussed the 
criminal penalties for violating the Sunshine Law and the process for abstaining from voting 
at Public Meetings if the board member has a personal private gain or loss based on their 
decision or recommendation. 
 
ANNEXATION, REZONING, FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENTS 
(Public Hearing) 
 

5. 12552 Stoneybrook West Parkway (Lall, Jasmattie) 
Senior Planner Stephen Pash presented a voluntary annexation application for an 8.24± acre 
enclave located at 12552 Stoneybrook West Parkway.  The applicant has requested 
annexation with the future land use designation of Low Density Residential with an initial 
zoning of R-1.  The applicant intends to annex the property, connect to City sewer and water, 
and continue using it as their primary residence.  City Staff recommends approval of 
Ordinances 13-38, 13-39 and 13-40 subject to staff recommendations. 
 
Motion by Eric Weiss to recommend approval of the annexation, future land use, and  
rezoning for 12552 Stoneybrook West Parkway with staff recommendations (Attached 
Exhibit “A”).  Seconded by Jimmy Dunn, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 
 

6. 1288 N West Crown Point Road (Crown Point Management) 
Senior Planner Stephen Pash presented a voluntary annexation application for a 1.00± acre 
enclave located at 1288 N West Crown Point Road.  The property is currently developed with 
seven (7) single-family homes built between 1930 and 1946.  The applicant has requested 
annexation and intends to make major improvements to the homes, connect them to City 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 3 
 

sewer and water, and continue renting the houses.  Land Use will be Low-Density 
Residential and have an initial zoning of R-1 which is consistent with the adjoining 
properties.  City Staff supports this, will allow the modifications and allow the property to 
continue to exist as non-conforming since it existed prior to the annexation.  City Staff 
recommends approval of Ordinances 13-35, 13-36 and 13-37 subject to staff 
recommendations. 
 
General discussion on if there were more properties and homes in this area that were 
unincorporated and if they would annex in the future. 
 
Motion by Jimmy Dunn to recommend approval of the annexation, future land use, and 
rezoning for 1288 N West Crown Point Road with staff recommendations (Attached 
Exhibit “B”).  Seconded by Kent Horsley, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 
 

7. E Fullers Cross Road (Maguire, Raymer) 
Senior Planner Stephen Pash presented a voluntary annexation application for a 32.884± acre 
enclave located on the north side of the intersection of North Fullers Cross Road and East 
Fullers Cross Road next to Lake Apopka.  It is located just north of 315 E Fullers Cross Road 
which is part of the PUD application but will not be included in the PUD.  The applicant has 
requested Annexation and Future Land Use designation of conservation which will protect all 
the wetlands on it. It will not be developed as the property owner intends to keep it as a land 
bank.  There is no zoning being applied to the property at this time.  City Staff recommends 
approval of ordinances 13-33 and 13-34 subject to staff recommendations. 
 
Board Member Mac McKinney pointed out a staff error in the location map picture but the 
staff report and map were correct. 
 
Motion by Kent Horsley to recommend approval of E Fullers Cross Road annexation and 
future land use, parcel #02-22-27-0000-00-002, with staff recommendations (Attached 
Exhibit “C”).  Seconded by Jimmy Dunn, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 
 

8. 315 E Fullers Cross Road (Highland Groves) 
Senior Planner Laura Smith presented a rezoning application for an 81± acre site located at 
315 E Fullers Cross Road. The applicant has requested the rezoning from R-1 (Single-Family 
Residential) to PUD (Planned Unit Development).  Senior Planner Smith further stated the 
rezoning was requested to allow a residential subdivision of up to 186 single family dwelling 
units on lots which are proposed to vary in size from 75’ x 115’ to 100’ x 115’.  The 
applicant is seeking to reduce the minimum lot width and setback below what is required in 
the current R-1 zone.  The proposed development would include an active recreation park 
and passive recreation areas in the form of walking paths and open space areas.  In addition, 
the developer will be providing for the preservation of a 14.2 acre wetland area thru 
conservation.  The proposed development would be limited to a single access point on 
Fullers Cross Road with a secondary access point to Fullers Crossing subdivision on the east 
side of the project.  This access point is already pre-stubbed out.  Due to traffic congestion at 
the East Fullers Cross Road and East Crown Point Road intersection the City has coordinated 
with Orange County to take over the intersection and will be doing a warrant study to 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 4 
 

signalize the intersection.  To cooperate with the City the developer has agreed to prepay the 
Road Impact Fees to fund the signalization.  Staff has reviewed the request and found it to be 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Code of Ordinances and would recommend 
approval subject to staff recommendations. 
 
Applicant Dwight Saathoff, 7575 Dr. Phillips Blvd, Orlando FL 32819, was present to 
answer any questions. 
 
Board Member Eric Weiss’ parents live in the Fullers Crossing area where it is going to 
connect to the proposed property and wanted it noted due to their expressions and concerns 
given to him. 
 
Board Member Kent Horsley stated that in the last public meeting he raised the issue that in a 
PUD there is no protective ordinance or clause indicating that retail, condos or townhomes 
would not be permitted in this PUD.  Community Development Director Ed Williams replied 
that typically a PUD has a list of permitted uses and if it is not on the permitted uses list then 
it is excluded; however, anyone on the Board could add a provision specifically that retail, 
condos and townhomes would not be permitted.  There followed a general discussion on the 
permitted uses and the process to do a Special Exception to add a use not on the permitted 
use list. 
 
Board Member Kent Horsley question the traffic study and if the City of Ocoee was 
participating since they have adjoining property.  Ed Williams replied that we could not 
afford to wait on Ocoee which is why the County gave Winter Garden jurisdiction to do the 
signalization and turning lanes. 
 
There followed a general discussion regarding the entrances for the development, provisions 
for neighboring properties and their access and safety, City water and sewer being brought to 
the area, and the need for turning lanes and signals at the intersections. 
 
Motion by Jimmy Dunn to recommend approval of the PUD rezoning at 315 E Fullers 
Cross Road, Ordinance 13-32, to include provisions that no condos, townhomes, or retail 
would be permitted and with staff recommendations (Attached Exhibit “D”).  Seconded by 
Kent Horsley, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 
 

9. 16303 Marsh Road (Crooked Lake Preserve 
Senior Planner Laura Smith presented a rezoning application for a 78.29± acre site located at 
16303 Marsh Road for development of 140 single family dwelling units to be constructed on 
lots varying from 60’ to 90’ wide on lake front lots.  The applicant has requested the rezoning 
from NZ (No Zoning) to UVPUD (Urban Village Planned Unit Development).  The proposed 
development would contain a series of three (3) recreational parks and connection of a 10’ 
multi-purpose trail along Marsh Road.  The primary access point would be thru a roundabout 
to be constructed on Marsh Road with cross access points being provided to the waterside 
properties on the northwest side of the site, to Hickory Hammock on the northeast side of the 
site and a stub out for future cross access on the southwest portion of the property.  The 
applicant has further agreed to designate a pond site to the City for additional storm water 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 5 
 

capacity to support the City’s improvement at Avalon and Marsh Road intersection.  City 
Staff recommends approval subject to staff recommendations. 
 
Board Member Jimmy Dunn stated he would be abstaining from the vote due to his working 
for the applicant. 
 
A discussion ensued regarding the total number of homes that have been added to this area, 
the impact on the traffic on Marsh and Avalon Roads and what was being done to address 
these issues with signalization and turn lanes at intersections. 
 
Motion by Eric Weiss to recommend approval of rezoning 16303 Marsh Road to UVPUD 
with staff recommendations (Attached Exhibit “E”).  Seconded by Mac McKinney, the 
motion carried 5-0 with Board Member Dunn abstaining from voting due to conflict. 
 

10. 55 N Dillard Street (Welltrax) 
Senior Planner Laura Smith presented a rezoning application for a 0.27± acre site located at 
55 N Dillard Street.  The property is located in the traditional downtown land use district and 
had been approved for a special exception in 2006 to operate a business on the 1st floor with 
residential on the 2nd floor.  The applicant has requested the rezoning from R-2 (Residential 
District) to C-1 (Central Commercial District) to eliminate the need for the special exception.  
City Staff recommends approval subject to staff recommendations. 
 
Applicant Steve Dunnigan was present to answer any questions. 
 
Motion by Mac McKinney to recommend approval of rezoning 55 N Dillard Street to C-1 
with staff recommendations (Attached Exhibit “F”).  Seconded by Eric Weiss, the motion 
carried unanimously 6-0. 
 

 
11.Garden Commerce Parkway (Winter Garden Commerce Center) 

Senior Planner Laura Smith presented a rezoning application for Garden Commerce 
Parkway. The applicant has requested to rezone a portion of the Industrial Subdivision 
known as Winter Garden Commerce Center from I-1 (Light Industrial and Warehousing 
District) to PID (Planned Industrial District).  City Staff requests the rezoning be tabled to a 
date certain of August 5, 2013 at 6:30pm to work thru a few issues before it is ready to bring 
forward. 
 
Motion by Kent Horsley to recommend the postponement of Garden Commerce Parkway 
Rezoning to August 5, 2013 at 6:30pm.  Seconded by Jimmy Dunn, the motion carried 
unanimously 6-0. 
 
FINAL PLAT / PRELIMINARY PLAT / LOT SPLIT (Public Hearing) 

 
12. Oakland Park Phase II 

Senior Planner Laura Smith presented a Preliminary Plat application for Oakland Park PUD 
Phase 2 to allow platting of 80 single-family lots broken into two phases, Phase 2A and 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 6 
 

Phase 2B.  The project engineer was present to answer any specific questions.  City Staff 
recommends approval subject to staff recommendations. 
 
Board Member Eric Weiss questioned if the plats included the road in front of Lakeview 
Reserve and if Tildenville School Road was to remain a single lane or be changed to a two-
way street for exit from the subdivision.  Senior Planner Smith explained that it did and also 
included an extension of the road into the development. 

 
Motion by Eric Weiss to recommend approval of the preliminary plat for Oakland Park 
Phase 2 with staff recommendations (Attached Exhibit “G”).  Seconded by Kent Horsley, 
the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 

 
13.17001 Marsh Road - Waterside at John’s Lake 

Senior Planner Stephen Pash presented an application for a lot split at Waterside at John’s 
Lake. The applicant is proposing to take two existing parcels and split each one into 2 parcels 
totaling 4 parcels.  They are part of a settlement agreement between the City, John’s Lake 
and the neighboring property owners.  The lot split would have no effect on anything 
previously approved in John’s Lake Pointe but would only be part of the buffer area and the 
existing proposed access tract to the neighboring homeowners which will then be sold to 
those neighboring property owners.  City Staff recommends approval subject to staff 
recommendations. 
 
Motion by Kent Horsley to recommend approval of the lot split at 17001 Marsh Road with 
staff recommendations (Attached Exhibit “H”).  Seconded by Jimmy Dunn, the motion 
carried unanimously 6-0. 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:43 p.m. 
 
APPROVED:   ATTEST: 
   
 
 

  

   
Chairman James Gentry  Customer Service Representative Kathy Rathel 
 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 7 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 8 
 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 9 
 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 10 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 11 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 12 
 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 13 
 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 14 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 15 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 16 
 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 17 
 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 18 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 19 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 20 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 21 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 22 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 23 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 24 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 25 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 26 
 

EXHIBIT “E” 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 27 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 28 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 29 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 30 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 31 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 32 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 33 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 34 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 35 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 36 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 37 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 38 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 39 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 40 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 41 
 

EXHIBIT “F” 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 42 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 43 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 44 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 45 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 46 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 47 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 48 
 

EXHIBIT “G” 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 49 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 50 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 51 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 52 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 53 
 

EXHIBIT “H” 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 54 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 55 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 56 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 57 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 58 
 

 



 

 

JULY 1, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 59 
 

 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 4 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  July 29, 2013 MEETING DATE: August 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 750 S Park Avenue (ANNEXATION, FLU, ZONING) 
 PROJECT NAME Deloach Annexation 
 PARCEL ID# 22-22-27-1084-01-150 
  

ISSUE: The applicant is requesting Annexation, Future Land Use designation, 
and initial Zoning for the property located at 750 S. Park Avenue.  

  

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  

OWNER/APPLICANT: Thomas & Dawn Deloach Trust 
  

CURRENT ZONING: R-2 Residential District (Orange County) 
  

PROPOSED ZONING: R-2 Residential District  
  

CURRENT FLU: Low Density Residential (Orange County) 
  

PROPOSED FLU: LR Low Density Residential  
  

SUMMARY: 
 The City encourages infill of its jurisdictional limits through 

voluntary annexation of enclaves. The subject property makes up 
a 0.22 ± acre enclave generally located on the west side of S Park 
Avenue, north of Jackson Street and south of W Story Road. The 
applicant has requested Annexation into the City, Amendment to 
the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to 
designate the property as Low Density Residential, and initial 
zoning of R-2. (See attached Staff Report).  

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval Ordinance 13-45, Ordinance 13-46, 

and Ordinance 13-47. 
  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 A public meeting for the first reading of the ordinances is 

scheduled for the City Commission on Thursday, August 8, 2013. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 

Ordinance 13-45 
Ordinance 13-46 
Ordinance 13-47 

 Staff Report 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

750 S. Park Avenue 
 

ANNEXATION, FLU MAP AMENDMENT, REZONING 
 
 

 



 
 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY: STEVE PASH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE: JULY 29, 2013 
SUBJECT: ANNEXATION – FLU AMENDMENT – ZONING 
  750 SOUTH PARK AVENUE (0.22 +/- ACRES) 
  PARCEL ID #:  22-22-27-1084-01-150 
APPLICANT: THOMAS & DAWN DELOACH TRUST 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property is located at 750 South Park Aveune and is approximately 0.22 ± acres. The 
map below depicts the proximity of the subject property to the City’s jurisdictional limits: 

 
 



Deloach Property 
750 South Park Avenue 

Annexation – Zoning – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 
    August 5, 2013 

Page 2 
 

 
 

The applicant has requested annexation into the City, amendment to the Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to designate the property as Low Density Residential, 
and rezoning the property to R-2 Residential District.    
 
In accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, permitted uses within the Low Density 
Residential land use include single family homes and churches and schools. The zoning 
classifications that are consistent with the Low Density Residential land use designation include 
PUD, R-1A, R-1, R-2, R-1B, and INT. 
 
The City endorses infill of its jurisdictional limits through voluntary annexation of enclaves. The 
elimination of enclaves through voluntary annexation furthers the goals, objectives, and policies 
of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
EXISTING USE 
The subject property is currently developed with a single family home.   
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located to the north is a single family house, zoned R-2 and located in Orange 
County. The properties located to the east are developed with a single family and the Orange 
Tree Mobile Home Park, zoned R-2 and located in the City. The property to the south is a single 
family house, zoned R-2 and located in Orange County.  The properties to the west are 
developed as single family homes, zoned R-2 and located in Orange County. 
 
PROPOSED USE 
The owner is proposing to leave the existing single family home and connect to City sewer and 
water once the annexation is complete.    
 
PUBLIC FACILITY ANALYSIS 
The City will provide garbage collection, police protection, and all other services regularly 
provided to City of Winter Garden residents including building permits. The property will be 
served by both Orange County Fire and Rescue and the City of Winter Garden Fire Department 
under the First Response System. 
 
SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends approval of the proposed Ordinances. Annexation will provide a more 
efficient delivery of services to the property and further the goals and objectives of the City of 
Winter Garden’s Comprehensive Plan to eliminate enclaves.  
 



Deloach Property 
750 South Park Avenue 

Annexation – Zoning – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 
    August 5, 2013 

Page 3 
 

 
 

MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
 

750 South Park Avenue 
 
 
 



Deloach Property 
750 South Park Avenue 

Annexation – Zoning – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 
    August 5, 2013 

Page 4 
 

 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
750 South Park Avenue 

 
 

Subject property 
changed from Orange 
County Low Density 
Residential to City 

Low Density 
Residential 



Deloach Property 
750 South Park Avenue 

Annexation – Zoning – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 
    August 5, 2013 

Page 5 
 

 
 

ZONING  MAP 
750 South Park Avenue 

 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 

Subject property 
change from 

County R-2 to 
City R-2 



 

Ordinance 13-45 

Page 1 of 3 
 

ORDINANCE 13-45 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA PROVIDING FOR THE ANNEXATION OF 
CERTAIN ADDITIONAL LANDS GENERALLY DESCRIBED 
AS APPROXIMATELY 0.24 ± ACRES LOCATED AT 750 
SOUTH PARK AVENUE ON THE WEST SIDE OF SOUTH 
PARK AVENUE, NORTH OF JACKSON STREET AND 
SOUTH OF WEST STORY ROAD INTO THE CITY OF 
WINTER GARDEN FLORIDA; REDEFINING THE CITY 
BOUNDARIES TO GIVE THE CITY JURISDICTION OVER 
SAID PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of the land, generally described as approximately 0.24 ± 
acres located at 750 South Park Avenue on the west side of South Park Avenue, north of 
Jackson Street and south of West Story Road and legally described in Section 2 of this 
Ordinance, which land is reasonably compact and contiguous to the corporate limits of 
the City of Winter Garden, Florida (“City”), has, pursuant to the prerequisites and 
standards set forth in § 171.044, Fla. Stat., petitioned the City Commission for voluntary 
annexation; 
 
 WHEREAS, the petition for voluntary annexation referenced herein bears the 
signatures of all owners of the property or properties described in Section 2 of this 
Ordinance (i.e., the property or properties to be annexed); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the property described in Section 2 of 
this Ordinance is located in an unincorporated area of the County and that annexation 
of such property will not result in the creation of an enclave.   
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Annexation.  That the City Commission through its Planning and 
Zoning Board has conducted an investigation to determine whether the described 
property meets the prerequisites and standards set forth in Chapter 171, Fla. Stat. and 
has held a public hearing and said petition and made certain findings.  
 
 SECTION 2: Description of Area Annexed.  That, after said public hearing and 

having found such petition meets said prerequisites and standards, the property legally 
defined in ATTACHMENT “A” and graphically shown on the attached map shall be 
annexed into the City of Winter Garden, Florida.  
 
 SECTION 3: Effect of Annexation.  That the City of Winter Garden, Florida, shall 
have all of the power, authority, and jurisdiction over and within the land as described in 
Section 2 hereof, and the inhabitants thereof, and property therein, as it does and have 



 

Ordinance 13-45 

Page 2 of 3 
 

over its present corporate limits and laws, ordinances, and resolutions of said City shall 
apply and shall have equal force and effect as if all territory had been part of said City at 
the time of the passage of such laws, ordinances, and resolutions. 
 
 SECTION 4: Apportionment of Debts and Taxes.  Pursuant to § 171.061, Fla. 
Stat., the area annexed to the City shall be subject to all taxes and debts of the City upon 
the effective date of annexation. However, the annexed area shall not be subject to 
municipal ad valorem taxation for the current year if the effective date of the annexation 
falls after the City levies such tax. 
 
 SECTION 5:  Instructions to Clerk.  Within seven (7) days following the adoption of 
this Ordinance, the City Clerk or his/her designee is directed to file a copy of this 
ordinance, including ATTACHMENT “A” hereto, with the clerk of the circuit court and the 
chief administrative officer of Orange County as required by § 171.044(3), Fla. Stat.  
 
 SECTION 6:  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 
then such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 7:  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
adoption at its second reading. 
 

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 
, 2013. 

 

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 

 



 

Ordinance 13-45 

Page 3 of 3 
 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
PARCEL ID#: 22-22-27-1084-01-150 
 
LOT 15, BLOCK 'A', BURCHSHIRE, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK Q, PAGE 138, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
ALSO DESCRIBED AS A PARCEL OF LAND COMPRISING A PORTION OF 
SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY 
FLORIDA BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  
 
COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 20, BLOCK 'A' BURCHSHIRE 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK A, PAGE 
138 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. SAID POINT 
ALSO LYING ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF SOUTH PARK AVENUE, 
THENCE RUN NORTH 00°24'01" EAST ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 349.96 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; SAID POINT 
ALSO BEING THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF LOT 15 OF SAID BURCHSHIRE 
PLAT; THENCE RUN NORTH 88°53'59" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 135.81 FEET; 
THENCE RUN NORTH 00°01'59" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET; THENCE 
RUN SOUTH 88°53'59" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 136.34' TO THE SAID 
WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF SOUTH PARK AVENUE; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
00°24'01" WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY FOR A DISTANCE OF 69.99 FEET 
TO THE AFORESAID POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
 



 

Ordinance 13-46 

Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE 13-46 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF 
THE WINTER GARDEN COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BY 
CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF 
REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 0.24 ± 
ACRES OF LAND LOCATED AT 750 SOUTH PARK 
AVENUE ON THE WEST SIDE OF SOUTH PARK 
AVEUNE, NORTH OF JACKSON STREET AND SOUTH 
OF WEST STORY ROADFROM ORANGE COUNTY LOW 
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO CITY LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 13

th
 of June, 1991, the City Commission of the City of Winter 

Garden adopted Ordinance 91-16 which adopted a new Comprehensive Plan for the City 
of Winter Garden, and on the 24

th
 of June, 2010, the City Commission of the City of 

Winter Garden adopted Ordinance 10-19 readopting and amending the Comprehensive 
Plan for the City of Winter Garden; 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 0.24 ± 
acres of land located at 750 South Park Avenue on the west side of South Park Avenue, 
north of Jackson Street and south of West Story Road, and legally described in 
ATTACHMENT “A” (the “Property”) has petitioned the City to amend the Winter Garden 
Comprehensive Plan to change the Future Land Use classification from Orange County 
Low Density Residential to City Low Density Residential; and 

  
 WHEREAS, the City of Winter Garden's Local Planning Agency and City 
Commission have conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings pursuant to 
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, regarding the adoption of this ordinance; now, therefore, 
 
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 
SECTION I.  FLUM Amendment.  The City of Winter Garden hereby amends the Future 
Land Use Map of the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan by designating the 
aforesaid Property to City Low Density Residential as set forth in ATTACHMENT "B".  
 
SECTION II.   Effective Date.  Provided that the Property described herein is annexed 
into the City of Winter Garden pursuant to Ordinance 13-45, this Ordinance shall become 
effective 31 days after adoption, unless the Ordinance is timely challenged pursuant to § 
163.3187(5), Fla. Stat., in which case, the Ordinance shall not be effective until the state 



 

Ordinance 13-46 

Page 2 of 4 

land planning agency or the Administrative Commission, respectively, issues a final order 
determining that the adopted Ordinance is in compliance. 
  
SECTION III.  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, then 
such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
  

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 
, 2013. 

 

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 
 



 

Ordinance 13-46 

Page 3 of 4 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
PARCEL ID#: 22-22-27-1084-01-150 
 
LOT 15, BLOCK 'A', BURCHSHIRE, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK Q, PAGE 138, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
ALSO DESCRIBED AS A PARCEL OF LAND COMPRISING A PORTION OF 
SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY 
FLORIDA BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  
 
COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 20, BLOCK 'A' BURCHSHIRE 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK A, PAGE 
138 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. SAID POINT 
ALSO LYING ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF SOUTH PARK AVENUE, 
THENCE RUN NORTH 00°24'01" EAST ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 349.96 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; SAID POINT 
ALSO BEING THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF LOT 15 OF SAID BURCHSHIRE 
PLAT; THENCE RUN NORTH 88°53'59" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 135.81 FEET; 
THENCE RUN NORTH 00°01'59" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET; THENCE 
RUN SOUTH 88°53'59" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 136.34' TO THE SAID 
WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF SOUTH PARK AVENUE; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
00°24'01" WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY FOR A DISTANCE OF 69.99 FEET 
TO THE AFORESAID POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 
 



 

Ordinance 13-46 

Page 4 of 4 

ATTACHMENT "B"  

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

750 South Park Avenue 
 

 

Subject property changed from Orange 

County Low Density Residential to City 

Low Density Residential 



 

Ordinance 13-47 

Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE 13-47 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 

FLORIDA REZONING APPROXIMATELY 0.24 ± ACRES OF 

REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT 750 SOUTH 

PARK AVENUE ON THE WEST SIDE OF SOUTH PARK 

AVENUE, NORTH OF JACKSON STREET AND SOUTH OF 

WEST STORY ROAD FROM ORANGE COUNTY R-2 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO CITY R-2  RESIDENTIAL 

DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 0.24 ± acres of 

land located at 750 South Park Avenue on the west side of South Park Avenue, north of Jackson 

Street and south of West Story Road, and legally described in Section 1 of this ordinance has 

petitioned the City to rezone said property from Orange County R-2 Residential District to the 

City’s R-2 Residential District zoning classification, therefore; 
  

 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 

 SECTION 1: Rezoning.  After due notice and public hearing, the zoning classification 

of real property legally described on ATTACHMENT “A,” is hereby rezoned from Orange 

County R-2 Residential District to City R-2 Residential District in the City of Winter Garden, 

Florida.  
 

 SECTION 2: Zoning Map.  The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to amend 

the Official Winter Garden Zoning Map in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 
 

 SECTION 3: Non-Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 

then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void. 
 

 SECTION 4: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective simultaneously upon 

the effective date of Ordinance 12-46 which is an amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the 

City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan that allows the property described herein to be zoned 

as provided in this Ordinance. 
  

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 

, 2013. 
 

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the City of 

Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 



 

Ordinance 13-47 

Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

  

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
PARCEL ID#: 22-22-27-1084-01-150 
 
LOT 15, BLOCK 'A', BURCHSHIRE, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK Q, PAGE 138, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
ALSO DESCRIBED AS A PARCEL OF LAND COMPRISING A PORTION OF 
SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY 
FLORIDA BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  
 
COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 20, BLOCK 'A' BURCHSHIRE 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK A, PAGE 
138 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. SAID POINT 
ALSO LYING ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF SOUTH PARK AVENUE, 
THENCE RUN NORTH 00°24'01" EAST ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 349.96 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; SAID POINT 
ALSO BEING THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF LOT 15 OF SAID BURCHSHIRE 
PLAT; THENCE RUN NORTH 88°53'59" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 135.81 FEET; 
THENCE RUN NORTH 00°01'59" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET; THENCE 
RUN SOUTH 88°53'59" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 136.34' TO THE SAID 
WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF SOUTH PARK AVENUE; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
00°24'01" WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY FOR A DISTANCE OF 69.99 FEET 
TO THE AFORESAID POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 
 

 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 5 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  July 29, 2013 MEETING DATE:   August 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 1205 East Fullers Cross Road – (ANNEXATION, FLU, ZONING) 
 PROJECT NAME OAK TRAIL 
 PARCEL ID# 12-22-27-0000-00-005 
  

ISSUE: The applicant is requesting Annexation, Zoning, and Future Lands Use 
designation on property located at 1205 East Fullers Cross Road.  

  

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  

OWNER/APPLICANT: Gilkey Organization, LLC 
  

CURRENT ZONING: A-2 (Orange County) 
  

PROPOSED ZONING: R-1B 
  

CURRENT FLU: Planned Development – Low Density Residential (Orange County) 
  

PROPOSED FLU: Low Density Residential (City) 
  

SUMMARY: 
 The City encourages infill of its jurisdictional limits through 

voluntary annexation of enclaves. The subject property makes up 
a 11.1 ± acre enclave located on the north side of East Fullers 
Cross Road, east of North West Crown Point Road and west of 
East Crown Point Road. The applicant has requested Annexation 
into the City, Initial Zoning of R-1B, and Amendment to the Future 
Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to designate the 
property as Low Density Residential.  (See attached Staff Report).  

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 13-48, Ordinance 13-49, 

and Ordinance 13-50. 
  

NEXT STEP(S):  
 A public meeting for the first reading of the ordinances is 

scheduled for the City Commission on Thursday, August 8, 2013. 
  

ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Ordinance 13-48 
 Ordinance 13-49 

Ordinance 13-50 
 Staff Report 
  
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

1205 E Fullers Cross Road 
 

ANNEXATION, FLU MAP AMENDMENT, REZONING 
 
 

 



 
 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY: STEVE PASH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE: JULY 29, 2013 
SUBJECT: ANNEXATION – FLU AMENDMENT – ZONING 
  1205 EAST FULLERS CROSS ROAD (11.1 +/- ACRES) 
  PARCEL ID #:  12-22-27-0000-00-005 
APPLICANT: GILKEY ORGANIZATION, LLC 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property is located at 1205 East Fullers Cross Road, on the north side of East Fullers 
Cross Road, east of North West Crown Point Road and west of East Crown Point Road and is 
approximately 11.1 ± acres. The map below depicts the proximity of the subject property to the 
City’s jurisdictional limits: 

 
 



1205 East Fullers Cross (Oak Trail) 
Annexation – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    August 5, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 
 

The applicant has requested annexation into the City, amendment to the Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to designate the property as Low Density Residential, 
and rezoning the property to R-1B Single-Family Residential District.    
 
In accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, permitted uses within the Low Density 
Residential land use include single family homes and churches and schools. The zoning 
classifications that are consistent with the Low Density Residential land use designation include 
PUD, R-1A, R-1, R-2, R-1B, and INT. 
 
The City endorses infill of its jurisdictional limits through voluntary annexation of enclaves. The 
elimination of enclaves through voluntary annexation furthers the goals, objectives, and policies 
of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
EXISTING USE 
The subject property currently contains one house, one manufactured home, and the remainder is 
wooded vacant land. 
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located to the north is developed with the Fullers Crossing single family 
neighborhood, zoned PUD, and located in Winter Garden. The property located to the east is  6 
+/- acre property developed with a single family house, zoned R-1, and located in Winter 
Garden. The property to the south is developed with the Tuscany single family neighborhood, 
zoned R-1, and located in Winter Garden.  The property to the west is 3.2 +/- acre property 
developed with a single family house and a citrus grove, zoned A-2, and located in Orange 
County. 
 
PROPOSED USE 
The applicant intends to annex the property and submit for a Preliminary Subdivision Plan, then 
Construction Plans to develop it with a single family neighborhood with approximately 26 lots.    
 
PUBLIC FACILITY ANALYSIS 
The City will provide garbage collection, police protection, and all other services regularly 
provided to City of Winter Garden residents including building permits. The property will be 
served by both Orange County Fire and Rescue and the City of Winter Garden Fire Department 
under the First Response System. 
 
SUMMARY 
Annexation will provide a more efficient delivery of services to the property and further the 
goals and objectives of the City of Winter Garden’s Comprehensive Plan to eliminate enclaves. 
City Staff recommends approval of the proposed Ordinances. 
 



1205 East Fullers Cross (Oak Trail) 
Annexation – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    August 5, 2013 
Page 3 

 

 
 

 
 
 
MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
 

1205 East Fullers Cross Road (Oak Trail) 
 
 



1205 East Fullers Cross (Oak Trail) 
Annexation – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    August 5, 2013 
Page 4 

 

 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
1205 East Fullers Cross Road (Oak Trail) 

 

 
 
 
 

Subject property changed from Orange County 
Planned Development – Low Density 

Residential to City Low Density Residential 



1205 East Fullers Cross (Oak Trail) 
Annexation – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    August 5, 2013 
Page 5 

 

 
 

ZONING MAP 
1205 East Fullers Cross Road (Oak Trail) 

 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 

Subject property changed from 
Orange County A-2 to City R-1B 



 

Ordinance 13-48 

Page 1 of 3 
 

ORDINANCE 13-48 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA PROVIDING FOR THE ANNEXATION OF 
CERTAIN ADDITIONAL LANDS GENERALLY DESCRIBED 
AS APPROXIMATELY 11.1 ± ACRES LOCATED AT 1205 
EAST FULLERS CROSS ROAD ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 
EAST FULLERS CROSS ROAD, EAST OF NORTH WEST 
CROWN POINT ROAD AND WEST OF EAST CROWN 
POINT ROAD INTO THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
FLORIDA; REDEFINING THE CITY BOUNDARIES TO 
GIVE THE CITY JURISDICTION OVER SAID PROPERTY; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of the land, generally described as approximately 11.1 ± 
acres located at 1205 East Fullers Cross Road on the north side of East Fullers Cross 
Road, east of North West Crown Point Road and west of East Crown Point Road and 
legally described in Section 2 of this Ordinance, which land is reasonably compact and 
contiguous to the corporate limits of the City of Winter Garden, Florida (“City”), has, 
pursuant to the prerequisites and standards set forth in § 171.044, Fla. Stat., petitioned 
the City Commission for voluntary annexation; 
 
 WHEREAS, the petition for voluntary annexation referenced herein bears the 
signatures of all owners of the property or properties described in Section 2 of this 
Ordinance (i.e., the property or properties to be annexed); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the property described in Section 2 of 
this Ordinance is located in an unincorporated area of the County and that annexation 
of such property will not result in the creation of an enclave.   
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Annexation.  That the City Commission through its Planning and 
Zoning Board has conducted an investigation to determine whether the described 
property meets the prerequisites and standards set forth in Chapter 171, Fla. Stat. and 
has held a public hearing and said petition and made certain findings.  
 
 SECTION 2: Description of Area Annexed.  That, after said public hearing and 
having found such petition meets said prerequisites and standards, the property legally 
defined in ATTACHMENT “A” and graphically shown on the attached map shall be 
annexed into the City of Winter Garden, Florida.  
 
 SECTION 3: Effect of Annexation.  That the City of Winter Garden, Florida, shall 
have all of the power, authority, and jurisdiction over and within the land as described in 



 

Ordinance 13-48 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Section 2 hereof, and the inhabitants thereof, and property therein, as it does and have 
over its present corporate limits and laws, ordinances, and resolutions of said City shall 
apply and shall have equal force and effect as if all territory had been part of said City at 
the time of the passage of such laws, ordinances, and resolutions. 
 
 SECTION 4: Apportionment of Debts and Taxes.  Pursuant to § 171.061, Fla. 
Stat., the area annexed to the City shall be subject to all taxes and debts of the City upon 
the effective date of annexation. However, the annexed area shall not be subject to 
municipal ad valorem taxation for the current year if the effective date of the annexation 
falls after the City levies such tax. 
 
 SECTION 5:  Instructions to Clerk.  Within seven (7) days following the adoption of 
this Ordinance, the City Clerk or his/her designee is directed to file a copy of this 
ordinance, including ATTACHMENT “A” hereto, with the clerk of the circuit court and the 
chief administrative officer of Orange County as required by § 171.044(3), Fla. Stat.  
 
 SECTION 6:  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 
then such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 7:  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
adoption at its second reading. 
 

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 
, 2013. 

 

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 

 



 

Ordinance 13-48 

Page 3 of 3 
 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
PARCEL ID#: 12-22-27-0000-00-005 
 

. 



 

Ordinance 13-49 

Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE 13-49 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF 
THE WINTER GARDEN COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BY 
CHANGING THE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF REAL 
PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 11.1 ± ACRES 
LOCATED AT 1205 EAST FULLERS CROSS ROAD ON 
THE NORTH SIDE OF EAST FULLERS CROSS ROAD, 
EAST OF NORTH WEST CROWN POINT ROAD AND 
WEST OF EAST CROWN POINT ROAD FROM ORANGE 
COUNTY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT – LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL TO CITY LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 13

th
 of June, 1991, the City Commission of the City of Winter 

Garden adopted Ordinance 91-16 which adopted a new Comprehensive Plan for the City 
of Winter Garden, and on the 24

th
 of June, 2010, the City Commission of the City of 

Winter Garden adopted Ordinance 10-19 readopting and amending the Comprehensive 
Plan for the City of Winter Garden; 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 11.1 ± 
acres located at 1205 East Fullers Cross Road on the north side of East Fullers Cross 
Road, east of North West Crown Point Road and west of East Crown Point Road, and 
legally described in ATTACHMENT “A” (the “Property”) has petitioned the City to 
amend the Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan to change the Future Land Use 
classification from Orange County Planned Development – Low Density Residential to 
City Low Density Residential; and 

  
 WHEREAS, the City of Winter Garden's Local Planning Agency and City 
Commission have conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings pursuant to 
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, regarding the adoption of this ordinance; now, therefore, 
 
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 
SECTION I.  FLUM Amendment.  The City of Winter Garden hereby amends the Future 
Land Use Map of the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan by designating the 
aforesaid Property to City Low Density Residential as set forth in ATTACHMENT "B".  
 
SECTION II.   Effective Date.  Provided that the Property described herein is annexed 
into the City of Winter Garden pursuant to Ordinance 13-48, this Ordinance shall become 



 

Ordinance 13-49 

Page 2 of 4 

effective 31 days after adoption, unless the Ordinance is timely challenged pursuant to § 
163.3187(5), Fla. Stat., in which case, the Ordinance shall not be effective until the state 
land planning agency or the Administrative Commission, respectively, issues a final order 
determining that the adopted Ordinance is in compliance. 
  
SECTION III.  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, then 
such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
  

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 
, 2013. 

 

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 
 



 

Ordinance 13-49 

Page 3 of 4 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
PARCEL ID#: 12-22-27-0000-00-005 
 
  

 



 

Ordinance 13-49 

Page 4 of 4 

ATTACHMENT "B"  

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

1205 East Fullers Cross Road 
 

 

Subject property changed from Orange 

County Planned Development Low Density 

Residential to City Low Density Residential 



 

Ordinance 13-50 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE 13-50 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 

FLORIDA REZONING APPROXIMATELY 11.1 ± ACRES 

LOCATED AT 1205 EAST FULLERS CROSS ROAD ON THE 

NORTH SIDE OF EAST FULLERS CROSS ROAD, EAST OF 

NORTH WEST CROWN POINT ROAD AND WEST OF EAST 

CROWN POINT ROAD FROM ORANGE COUNTY A-2 

FARMLAND RURAL DISTRICT TO CITY R-1B RESIDENTIAL 

DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 11.1 ± acres 

located at 1205 East Fullers Cross Road on the north side of East Fullers Cross Road, east of 

North West Crown Point Road and west of East Crown Point Road, and legally described in 

Section 1 of this ordinance has petitioned the City to rezone said property from Orange County 

A-2 Farmland Rural to the City’s R-1B Residential District zoning classification, therefore; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the City 

Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the rezoning approved by 

this Ordinance is consistent with the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, further, the City Commission finds that based on competent, substantial 

evidence in the record, the rezoning approved by this Ordinance meets all applicable criteria for 

rezoning the Property to R-1B Residential District contained within the City of Winter Garden 

Comprehensive Plan and the Code of Ordinances.  

 
  

 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 

 SECTION 1: Rezoning.  The above “Whereas” clauses constitute findings by the City 

Commission.  After due notice and public hearing, the zoning classification of real property 

legally described on ATTACHMENT “A,” is hereby rezoned from Orange County A-2 Farmland 

Rural District to City R-1B Residential District in the City of Winter Garden, Florida.  
 

 SECTION 2: Zoning Map.  The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to amend 

the Official Winter Garden Zoning Map in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 
 

 SECTION 3: Non-Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 

then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void. 
 

 SECTION 4: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective simultaneously upon 

the effective date of Ordinance 13-49 which is an amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the 

City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan that allows the property described herein to be zoned 

as provided in this Ordinance. 
  

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 

, 2013. 
 

 



 

Ordinance 13-50 

Page 2 of 3 

 

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the City of 

Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 



 

Ordinance 13-50 

Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

  

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
PARCEL ID#: 12-22-27-0000-00-005 
 

 
 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 6 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  July 29, 2013 MEETING DATE:   August 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 950 Vineland Road (ANNEXATION, FLU, ZONING) 
 PROJECT NAME 950 Vineland Road 
 PARCEL ID# 23-22-27-8199-00-100 
  

ISSUE: The applicant is requesting Annexation, Future Lands Use designation, 
and Zoning on property located at 950 Vineland Road.  

  

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  

OWNER/APPLICANT: Crucita Carrasquillo 
  

CURRENT ZONING: R-2 (Orange County) 
  

PROPOSED ZONING: R-NC 
  

CURRENT FLU: Low Medium Density (Orange County) 
  

PROPOSED FLU: Residential Neighborhood Commercial (City) 
  

SUMMARY: 
 The City encourages infill of its jurisdictional limits through 

voluntary annexation of enclaves. The subject property makes up 
a 0.24 ± acre enclave located on the west side of Vineland Road, 
north of West Morgan Street and south of Broad Street. The 
applicant has requested Annexation into the City, Amendment to 
the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to 
designate the property as Residential Neighborhood Commercial, 
and initial Zoning of R-NC.  (See attached Staff Report).  

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 13-51, Ordinance 13-52, 

and Ordinance 13-53. 
  

NEXT STEP(S):  
 A public meeting for the first reading of the ordinances is 

scheduled for the City Commission on Thursday, August 8, 2013. 
  

ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Ordinance 13-51 
 Ordinance 13-52 

Ordinance 13-53 
 Staff Report 
  
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

950 Vineland Road 
 

ANNEXATION, FLU MAP AMENDMENT, REZONING 
 
 

 



 
 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY: STEVE PASH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE: JULY 29, 2013 
SUBJECT: ANNEXATION – FLU AMENDMENT – ZONING 
  950 VINELAND ROAD (0.24 +/- ACRES) 
  PARCEL ID #:  23-22-27-8199-00-100 
APPLICANT: CRUCITA CARRASQUILLO 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property is located at 950 Vineland Road and is approximately 0.24 ± acres. The 
map below depicts the proximity of the subject property to the City’s jurisdictional limits: 

 
 



950 Vineland Road 
Annexation – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    August 5, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 
 

The property is currently zoned R-2 in Orange County and carries a Future Land Use designation 
of Low Medium Density Residential.  The existing zoning and land use allow single-family 
detached and attached dwellings. 
 
The applicant has requested annexation into the City, amendment to the Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to designate the property as Residential 
Neighborhood Commercial, and initial zoning of R-NC.  This zoning and land use is consistent 
with the surrounding area.    
 
Properties designated with the Residential-Neighborhood Commercial land use category are 
required to be developed at a floor area ratio not greater than 0.35. Gross residential density shall 
be not greater than 6 dwelling units per acre. All uses shall have a maximum height of 35 feet. 
This designation shall provide for permitted low density residential uses and neighborhood 
commercial and professional uses. The mix should have a minimum of 80% residential uses. 
Uses should be located on collector and minor arterial streets close to low density residential 
areas. The zoning classifications that are consistent with the Residential Neighborhood 
Commercial classification is RNC and INT. 
 
The City endorses infill of its jurisdictional limits through voluntary annexation of enclaves. The 
elimination of enclaves through voluntary annexation furthers the goals, objectives, and policies 
of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
EXISTING USE 
The subject property is currently developed and used as a single-family house.   
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located to the north and west is developed as a duplex, is currently requesting a 
rezoning to R-NC, and is located in the City. The property located to the east is developed with a 
pool construction company, zoned C-2 and located in the City. The property to the south is 
developed with a single family house,  zoned R-2, and located in Orange County.   
 
PROPOSED USE 
The applicant intends to annex the property, continue using the single-family home, and later 
convert the home into an office.  Converting the house into an office can be done through Special 
Exception process.      
 
PUBLIC FACILITY ANALYSIS 
The City will provide garbage collection, police protection, and all other services regularly 
provided to City of Winter Garden residents including building permits. The property will be 
served by both Orange County Fire and Rescue and the City of Winter Garden Fire Department 
under the First Response System. 



950 Vineland Road 
Annexation – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    August 5, 2013 
Page 3 

 

 
 

 
SUMMARY 
Annexation will provide a more efficient delivery of services to the property and further the 
goals and objectives of the City of Winter Garden’s Comprehensive Plan to eliminate enclaves. 
City Staff recommends approval of the proposed Ordinances. 
 
 
 
MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
 

950 Vineland Road 
 
 

 



950 Vineland Road 
Annexation – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    August 5, 2013 
Page 4 

 

 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
950 Vineland Road 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject property changed from 
Orange County Low Medium 
Density to City Residential 
Neighborhood Commercial 



950 Vineland Road 
Annexation – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    August 5, 2013 
Page 5 

 

 
 

ZONING MAP  
950 Vineland Road 

 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 

Subject property changed from 
Orange County R-2 to City  R-NC 



 

Ordinance 13-51 

Page 1 of 3 
 

ORDINANCE 13-51 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA PROVIDING FOR THE ANNEXATION OF 
CERTAIN ADDITIONAL LANDS GENERALLY DESCRIBED 
AS APPROXIMATELY 0.24 ± ACRES LOCATED AT 950 
VINELAND ROAD ON THE WEST SIDE OF VINELAND 
ROAD NORTH OF WEST MORGAN STREET AND SOUTH 
OF BROAD STREET INTO THE CITY OF WINTER 
GARDEN FLORIDA; REDEFINING THE CITY 
BOUNDARIES TO GIVE THE CITY JURISDICTION OVER 
SAID PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of the land, generally described as approximately 0.24 ± 
acres located at 950 Vineland Road on the west side of Vineland Road, north of West 
Morgan Street and South of Broad Street and legally described in Section 2 of this 
Ordinance, which land is reasonably compact and contiguous to the corporate limits of 
the City of Winter Garden, Florida (“City”), has, pursuant to the prerequisites and 
standards set forth in § 171.044, Fla. Stat., petitioned the City Commission for voluntary 
annexation; 
 
 WHEREAS, the petition for voluntary annexation referenced herein bears the 
signatures of all owners of the property or properties described in Section 2 of this 
Ordinance (i.e., the property or properties to be annexed); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the property described in Section 2 of 
this Ordinance is located in an unincorporated area of the County and that annexation 
of such property will not result in the creation of an enclave.   
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Annexation.  That the City Commission through its Planning and 
Zoning Board has conducted an investigation to determine whether the described 
property meets the prerequisites and standards set forth in Chapter 171, Fla. Stat. and 
has held a public hearing and said petition and made certain findings.  
 
 SECTION 2: Description of Area Annexed.  That, after said public hearing and 

having found such petition meets said prerequisites and standards, the property legally 
defined in ATTACHMENT “A” and graphically shown on the attached map shall be 
annexed into the City of Winter Garden, Florida.  
 
 SECTION 3: Effect of Annexation.  That the City of Winter Garden, Florida, shall 
have all of the power, authority, and jurisdiction over and within the land as described in 
Section 2 hereof, and the inhabitants thereof, and property therein, as it does and have 



 

Ordinance 13-51 

Page 2 of 3 
 

over its present corporate limits and laws, ordinances, and resolutions of said City shall 
apply and shall have equal force and effect as if all territory had been part of said City at 
the time of the passage of such laws, ordinances, and resolutions. 
 
 SECTION 4: Apportionment of Debts and Taxes.  Pursuant to § 171.061, Fla. 
Stat., the area annexed to the City shall be subject to all taxes and debts of the City upon 
the effective date of annexation. However, the annexed area shall not be subject to 
municipal ad valorem taxation for the current year if the effective date of the annexation 
falls after the City levies such tax. 
 
 SECTION 5:  Instructions to Clerk.  Within seven (7) days following the adoption of 
this Ordinance, the City Clerk or his/her designee is directed to file a copy of this 
ordinance, including ATTACHMENT “A” hereto, with the clerk of the circuit court and the 
chief administrative officer of Orange County as required by § 171.044(3), Fla. Stat.  
 
 SECTION 6:  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 
then such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 7:  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
adoption at its second reading. 
 

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 
, 2013. 

 

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 

 



 

Ordinance 13-51 

Page 3 of 3 
 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
PARCEL ID#: 23-22-27-8199-00-100 
 
LOT 10, SOUTHERN BOULEVARD, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK J, PAGE 13, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
ALSO DESCRIBED AS A PARCEL OF LAND COMPRISING A PORTION OF 
SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY 
FLORIDA BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  
 
COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 1 SOUTHERN BOULEVARD 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK J, PAGE 13 
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. SAID POINT ALSO 
LYING ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF VINELAND ROAD, THENCE RUN 
SOUTH 12°03'28" WEST ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 563.33 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; SAID POINT ALSO 
BEING THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF LOT 10 OF SAID SOUTHERN 
BOULEVARD PLAT; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 12°03'28" WEST ALONG SAID 
WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY FOR A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY, RUN NORTH 77°56'32" WEST FOR 
A DISTANCE OF 175.00'; THENCE RUN NORTH 12°03'28" EAST FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 60.00 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 77°56'32" E 



 

Ordinance 13-52 

Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE 13-52 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF 
THE WINTER GARDEN COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BY 
CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF 
REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 0.24 ± 
ACRES LOCATED AT 950 VINELAND ROAD ON THE 
WEST SIDE OF VINELAND ROAD NORTH OF WEST 
MORGAN STREET AND SOUTH OF BROAD STREET 
FROM ORANGE COUNTY LOW MEDIUM DENSITY TO 
CITY RESIDENTIAL NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 13

th
 of June, 1991, the City Commission of the City of Winter 

Garden adopted Ordinance 91-16 which adopted a new Comprehensive Plan for the City 
of Winter Garden, and on the 24

th
 of June, 2010, the City Commission of the City of 

Winter Garden adopted Ordinance 10-19 readopting and amending the Comprehensive 
Plan for the City of Winter Garden; 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 0.24 ± 
acres of land located at 950 Vineland Road on the west side of Vineland Road north of 
West Morgan Street and south of Broad Street, and legally described in ATTACHMENT 
“A” (the “Property”) has petitioned the City to amend the Winter Garden Comprehensive 
Plan to change the Future Land Use classification from Orange County Low Medium 
Density to City Residential Neighborhood Commercial; and 

  
 WHEREAS, the City of Winter Garden's Local Planning Agency and City 
Commission have conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings pursuant to 
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, regarding the adoption of this ordinance; now, therefore, 
 
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 
SECTION I.  FLUM Amendment.  The City of Winter Garden hereby amends the Future 
Land Use Map of the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan by designating the 
aforesaid Property to City Residential Neighborhood Commercial as set forth in 
ATTACHMENT "B".  
 
SECTION II.   Effective Date.  Provided that the Property described herein is annexed 
into the City of Winter Garden pursuant to Ordinance 13-51, this Ordinance shall become 
effective 31 days after adoption, unless the Ordinance is timely challenged pursuant to § 



 

Ordinance 13-52 

Page 2 of 4 

163.3187(5), Fla. Stat., in which case, the Ordinance shall not be effective until the state 
land planning agency or the Administrative Commission, respectively, issues a final order 
determining that the adopted Ordinance is in compliance. 
  
SECTION III.  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, then 
such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
  

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 
, 2013. 

 

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 
 



 

Ordinance 13-52 

Page 3 of 4 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 

PARCEL ID#: 23-22-27-8199-00-100 
 

LOT 10, SOUTHERN BOULEVARD, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED 

IN PLAT BOOK J, PAGE 13, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

 

ALSO DESCRIBED AS A PARCEL OF LAND COMPRISING A PORTION OF SECTION 23, 

TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY FLORIDA BEING MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 1 SOUTHERN BOULEVARD 

ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK J, PAGE 13 OF THE 

PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. SAID POINT ALSO LYING ON THE 

WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF VINELAND ROAD, THENCE RUN SOUTH 12°03'28" WEST 

ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY FOR A DISTANCE OF 563.33 FEET TO THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING; SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF 

LOT 10 OF SAID SOUTHERN BOULEVARD PLAT; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 12°03'28" 

WEST ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY FOR A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET; 

THENCE DEPARTING SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY, RUN NORTH 77°56'32" WEST 

FOR A DISTANCE OF 175.00'; THENCE RUN NORTH 12°03'28" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 

60.00 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 77°56'32" E



 

Ordinance 13-52 

Page 4 of 4 

ATTACHMENT "B"  

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

950 Vineland Road 
 

 

Subject property changed from Orange 

Low Medium Density to City Residential 

Neighborhood Commercial 



 

Ordinance 13-53 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE 13-53 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 

FLORIDA REZONING APPROXIMATELY 0.24 ± ACRES 

LOCATED AT 950 VINELAND ROAD ON THE WEST SIDE OF 

VINELAND ROAD NORTH OF WEST MORGAN STREET AND 

SOUTH OF BROAD STREET FROM ORANGE COUNTY R-2 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO CITY R-NC RESIDENTIAL 

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 0.24 ± acres of 

land located at 920 Vineland Road on the west side of Vineland Road north of West Morgan 

Street and south of Broad Street, and legally described in Section 1 of this ordinance has 

petitioned the City to rezone said property from Orange County R-2 Residential District to the 

City’s RN-C Residential Neighborhood Commercial District zoning classification, therefore; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the City 

Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the rezoning approved by 

this Ordinance is consistent with the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, further, the City Commission finds that based on competent, substantial 

evidence in the record, the rezoning approved by this Ordinance meets all applicable criteria for 

rezoning the Property to RN-C Residential Neighborhood Commercial District contained within 

the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan and the Code of Ordinances.  

 
  

 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 

 SECTION 1: Rezoning.  The above “Whereas” clauses constitute findings by the City 

Commission.  After due notice and public hearing, the zoning classification of real property 

legally described on ATTACHMENT “A,” is hereby rezoned from Orange County R-2 

Residential District to City RN-C Residential Neighborhood Commercial District in the City of 

Winter Garden, Florida.  
 

 SECTION 2: Zoning Map.  The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to amend 

the Official Winter Garden Zoning Map in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 
 

 SECTION 3: Non-Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 

then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void. 
 

 SECTION 4: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective simultaneously upon 

the effective date of Ordinance 13-52 which is an amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the 

City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan that allows the property described herein to be zoned 

as provided in this Ordinance. 
  

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 

, 2013. 
 

 



 

Ordinance 13-53 

Page 2 of 3 

 

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the City of 

Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 



 

Ordinance 13-53 

Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

  

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
PARCEL ID#: 23-22-27-8199-00-100 
 
 
LOT 10, SOUTHERN BOULEVARD, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK J, PAGE 13, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
ALSO DESCRIBED AS A PARCEL OF LAND COMPRISING A PORTION OF 
SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY 
FLORIDA BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  
 
COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 1 SOUTHERN BOULEVARD 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK J, PAGE 13 
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. SAID POINT ALSO 
LYING ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF VINELAND ROAD, THENCE RUN 
SOUTH 12°03'28" WEST ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 563.33 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; SAID POINT ALSO 
BEING THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF LOT 10 OF SAID SOUTHERN 
BOULEVARD PLAT; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 12°03'28" WEST ALONG SAID 
WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY FOR A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY, RUN NORTH 77°56'32" WEST FOR 
A DISTANCE OF 175.00'; THENCE RUN NORTH 12°03'28" EAST FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 60.00 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 77°56'32" E 

 
 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 7 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  July 29, 2013 MEETING DATE:   August 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 948 Vineland Road (REZONING) 
 PROJECT NAME 948 Vineland Road 
 PARCEL ID# 23-22-27-8199-00-090 
  

ISSUE: The applicant is requesting Rezoning of the property located at 948 
Vineland Road.  

  

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  

OWNER/APPLICANT: Antonio Goncalves 
  

CURRENT ZONING: R-2  
  

PROPOSED ZONING: R-NC 
  

CURRENT FLU: Residential Neighborhood Commercial 
  

PROPOSED FLU: Residential Neighborhood Commercial 
  

SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is requesting to rezone the +/- 0.55 acre property 

from R-2 (Residential District) to R-NC (Residential Neighborhood 
Commercial). The property existing Future Land Use designation 
is consistent with the proposed zoning.  The property owner is 
considering applying of a Special Exception to use the existing 
building for an office, but at this time will probably keep renting the 
duplex. (See attached Staff Report).  

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 13-54. 
  

NEXT STEP(S):  
 A public meeting for the first reading of the ordinances is 

scheduled for the City Commission on Thursday, August 8, 2013. 
  

ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Ordinance 13-54 
 Staff Report 
  
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

948 Vineland Road 
 

Rezoning 
 
 

 



 
 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY: STEVE PASH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE: JULY 29, 2013 
SUBJECT: REZONING 
  948 VINELAND ROAD (0.55 +/- ACRES) 
  PARCEL ID #:  23-22-27-8199-00-090 
APPLICANT: ANTONIO GONCALVES 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property is located at 948 Vineland Road and is approximately 0.55 ± acres. The 
map below depicts the proximity of the subject property to the City’s jurisdictional limits: 

 



948 Vineland Road 
Rezoning - Staff Report 

    August 5, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 
 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the 0.55 ± acre property which is located within the City of 
Winter Garden and carries a Future Land Use Designation of R-NC (Residential Neighborhood 
Commercial) on the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan from R-2 
(Residential District) to R-NC (Residential Neighborhood Commercial District)..      
 
EXISTING USE 
The subject property is currently developed and used as a duplex.   
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located to the north is developed as a single family house, located in the City, and 
zoned R-NC. The property located to the east is developed with a pool construction company, 
zoned C-2 and located in the City. The property to the south is developed with a duplex, and 
currently being annexed into the City.  The property to the west is developed with Winter Garden 
RV Resort, zoned C-2 and located in the City. 
 
PROPOSED USE 
The applicant intends to annex the property and at a later date convert it into an office.  
Converting the house into an office can be done through Special Exception process.      
 
PUBLIC FACILITY ANALYSIS 
The City will provide garbage collection, police protection, and all other services regularly 
provided to City of Winter Garden residents including building permits. The property will be 
served by both Orange County Fire and Rescue and the City of Winter Garden Fire Department 
under the First Response System. 
 
SUMMARY 
Annexation will provide a more efficient delivery of services to the property and further the 
goals and objectives of the City of Winter Garden’s Comprehensive Plan to eliminate enclaves. 
City Staff recommends approval of the proposed Ordinances. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



948 Vineland Road 
Rezoning - Staff Report 

    August 5, 2013 
Page 3 

 

 
 

MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
 

948 Vineland Road 
 
 



948 Vineland Road 
Rezoning - Staff Report 

    August 5, 2013 
Page 4 

 

 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
948 Vineland Road 

 

 
 
 
 

Subject property changed 
existing Land Use of Residential 

Neighborhood Commercial 



948 Vineland Road 
Rezoning - Staff Report 

    August 5, 2013 
Page 5 

 

 
 

ZONING MAP 
948 Vineland Road 

 

 
END OF STAFF REPORT 

Subject property changed 
from City R-2 to City R-NC 



 

Ordinance 13-54 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE 13-54 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 

FLORIDA REZONING APPROXIMATELY 0.55 ± ACRES 

LOCATED AT 948 VINELAND ROAD ON THE WEST SIDE OF 

VINELAND ROAD NORTH OF WEST MORGAN STREET AND 

SOUTH OF BROAD STREET FROM CITY R-2 RESIDENTIAL 

DISTRICT TO CITY R-NC RESIDENTIAL NEIGHBORHOOD 

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 0.37 ± acres of 

land located at 948 Vineland Road on the west side of Vineland Road north of West Morgan 

Street and south of Broad Street, and legally described in Section 1 of this ordinance has 

petitioned the City to rezone said property from City R-2 Residential District to the City’s RN-C 

Residential Neighborhood Commercial District zoning classification, therefore; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the City 

Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the rezoning approved by 

this Ordinance is consistent with the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, further, the City Commission finds that based on competent, substantial 

evidence in the record, the rezoning approved by this Ordinance meets all applicable criteria for 

rezoning the Property to RN-C Residential Neighborhood Commercial District contained within 

the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan and the Code of Ordinances.  

 
  

 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 

 SECTION 1: Rezoning.  The above “Whereas” clauses constitute findings by the City 

Commission.  After due notice and public hearing, the zoning classification of real property 

legally described on ATTACHMENT “A,” is hereby rezoned from City R-2 Residential District to 

City RN-C Residential Neighborhood Commercial District in the City of Winter Garden, Florida.  
 

 SECTION 2: Zoning Map.  The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to amend 

the Official Winter Garden Zoning Map in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 
 

 SECTION 3: Non-Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 

then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void. 
 

 SECTION 4: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption. 
  

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 

, 2013. 
 

 

 

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the City of 

Winter Garden, Florida. 
 



 

Ordinance 13-54 

Page 2 of 3 

      APPROVED: 
 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 



 

Ordinance 13-54 

Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

  

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
PARCEL ID#: 23-22-27-8199-00-090 
 
 
 

 

 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 8 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  August 1, 2012 MEETING DATE: August 5, 2012 
 
SUBJECT: Garden Commerce Parkway (REZONING-PID) 
 PROJECT NAME Winter Garden Commerce Center 
 PARCEL ID# 24-22-27-9385-00-200, 24-22-27-9385-00-190, 24-22-27-9385-00-180, 

24-22-27-9385-00-170, 24-22-27-9385-00-160, 24-22-27-9385-00-120, 
24-22-27-9385-00-110, 24-22-27-9385-00-100, 24-22-27-0000-00-021, 
24-22-27-9385-00-090, 24-22-27-9385-00-080, 24-22-27-9385-00-070, 
24-22-27-9385-00-060, 24-22-27-9385-00-050, 24-22-27-9385-00-040, 
24-22-27-9385-00-030, 24-22-27-9385-00-020, and 
24-22-27-9385-00-010 

ISSUE: The applicant is requesting to rezone a portion of the Industrial 
Subdivision known as the Winter Garden Commerce Center from I-1 
(Light Industrial and Warehousing District) to PID (Planed Industrial 
District) 

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: PNC Bank, National Association 
  
CURRENT ZONING: I-1 (Light Industrial and Warehousing District) 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: PID (Planed Industrial District) 
  
CURRENT FLU: Industrial 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is requesting to rezone a portion of the Industrial 

Subdivision known as the Winter Garden Commerce Center from 
I-1 (Light Industrial and Warehousing District) to PID (Planned 
Industrial District) 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 13-42, rezoning 

approximately 44.14+/- acres from I-1 to PID subject to the 
conditions of the attached staff report with first reading by City 
Commission to be held on August 8, 2013. 

NEXT STEP(S):  
 Submit Site Plans for review 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 Ordinance 13-42 
 



LOCATION MAP 

Winter Garden Commerce Center 

REZONING 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:   LAURA SMITH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE:   AUGUST 1, 2013 
SUBJECT:   REZONING – WINTER GARDEN COMMERCE CENTER 
   Garden Commerce Pkwy (44.14+/- ACRES) 
     PARCEL ID #   
      
APPLICANT:  PNC Bank, National Association 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject properties, located on the Garden Commerce Parkway on the south side of Story 
Road, are approximately 44.14± acres. The map below depicts the location of the subject 
property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits. 

 



Winter Garden Commerce Center 
Garden Commerce Parkway (44.14 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 August 1, 2013 

Page 2 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 44.14± acres of land. The subject property is located within 
the City of Winter Garden municipal limits, and carries the zoning designation I-1 (Light 
Industrial and Warehousing District). The subject property is designated Multi Office Industrial 
on the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and is located within the Story 
Road Industrial Activity Center (see attached map).  
 

EXISTING USE 
The subject properties were partially platted into an industrial subdivision of 20 lots, 17 of which 
are included in the proposed rezoning in addition to an 18 acre parcel which is a future phase of 
the partially platted industrial subdivision. The platted portion of the properties has been 
improved with roads, stormwater retention and utilities however the 18 acre parcel has not been 
improved. All lots including the 18 acre parcel are presently vacant with no existing structures. 
The subdivision is also subject to the Covenants, Conditions and Restriction of the Winter 
Garden Commerce Center which were established and recorded with the platting of the 20 lots. 
The Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions were put in place to ensure higher standards of 
development for the subdivision through building and use restrictions. 
 

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The properties located on the north side of the subject properties are an orange grove with a 
single family home which is zoned C-2 in the City of Winter Garden and an I-1 zoned property 
containing approximately a 100,000 square feet of industrial manufacturing and warehousing. 
The properties located to the south of the subject properties are all zoned C-2 in the City of 
Winter Garden, one contains a 33,000 square foot building occupied by Quality Health Care, 
another is occupied by Independence RVs, and the third is a 7.73+/- acre vacant unimproved 
property. The properties located to the east of the subject properties are zoned I-2 within the City 
of Winter Garden and include 5 properties which are all developed and operating industrial 
manufacturing and warehouse type businesses. The properties located to the west of the subject 
properties are zoned I-1 in the City of Winter Garden, 8 of the neighboring properties are 
developed and operating light manufacturing and warehousing type businesses and 2 of the 
neighboring properties are vacant unimproved property.  
Within the subject industrial subdivision there are 3 lots which are not owned by the applicant 
and are not included in the properties proposed for rezoning, those properties are vacant and do 
not contain any buildings and are zoned I-1 within the City of Winter Garden. 
 

PROPOSED USE 
The applicant proposes to develop the 17 lots within the industrial subdivision and the 18+/- 
acres parcel on the south side of the platted subdivision as an industrial business park. The 
applicant has requested rezoning because they seek to allow outdoor storage within the 
subdivision. Under the current zoning of I-1 the properties are prohibited from having outdoor 
storage of materials.  
The applicant proposes rezone the properties to PID (Industrial Planned Unit Development) to 
include outdoor storage as a permitted use with specific screening and buffering regulations 
which include walls and landscape material with limitations on the maximum height of materials 



Winter Garden Commerce Center 
Garden Commerce Parkway (44.14 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 August 1, 2013 

Page 3 
 
stored outdoors. Additionally, the applicant has prohibited uses such as automobile repair to 
insure that the subdivision functions as an industrial business park and not a heavy industrial 
corridor. 
PUBLIC FACILITY ANALYSIS 
Potable Water, Reclaimed Water, and Wastewater Services 

The proposed development will be served by and required to connect to City of Winter 
Garden water, wastewater, and reclaimed water which are available and have adequate 
capacity to serve the proposed development. At such time that each property is developed, 
all necessary utility connections will be made, all connection costs shall be borne by the 
property owner.  

Stormwater 
The stormwater retention/detention facilities designed to service the proposed development 
have been constructed and meet the LOS Standards stated in Policy 4-1.1.1 of the Public 
Facilities Element included in the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan. In addition, 
the unimproved 18+/- acres parcel will also be required to comply with the LOS standards 
referenced above and all additional stormwater facilities will be designed in accordance 
with St. Johns River Water Management District and City of Winter Garden requirements. 

Transportation 
The subdivision is limited to a single access point on Story Road and access points to all 
lots within the subdivision will be from Garden Commerce Parkway. 

Other Services 
The City will provide garbage collection, police protection, and all other services 
regularly provided to City of Winter Garden residents including building permits. The 
property will be served by both Orange County Fire and Rescue and the City of Winter 
Garden Fire Department under the First Response System. 

 

SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends approval of the proposed Ordinance subject to the conditions and 
restrictions contained within Ordinance 13-42 and other City development codes and regualtions. 
Rezoning the subject property form City I-1 to City PID is consistent with the Future Land Use 
Map of the City’s Comprehensive. The proposed PID is consistent with surrounding 
development in the area and is compatible with the uses in the surrounding area. The proposed 
development of the subject property is consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan and land development regulations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Winter Garden Commerce Center 
Garden Commerce Parkway (44.14 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 August 1, 2013 

Page 4 
 
 
MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
WINTER GARDEN COMMERCE CENTER 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



Winter Garden Commerce Center 
Garden Commerce Parkway (44.14 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 August 1, 2013 

Page 5 
 
 

ZONING MAP 
WINTER GARDEN COMMERCE CENTER 

 



Winter Garden Commerce Center 
Garden Commerce Parkway (44.14 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 August 1, 2013 

Page 6 
 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
WINTER GARDEN COMMERCE CENTER 

 



Winter Garden Commerce Center 
Garden Commerce Parkway (44.14 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 August 1, 2013 

Page 7 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT  



 

 
-1- 

 ORDINANCE 13-42  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA, REZONING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS APPROXIMATELY 44.14 
ACRES OF LAND LOCATED GENERALLY SOUTH OF 
GARDEN COMMERCE PARKWAY AND EAST OF 9TH 
STREET AND WEST OF CARTER ROAD GENERALLY 
KNOWN AS THE WINTER GARDEN COMMERCE CENTER, 
FROM I-1 (LIGHT INDUSTRIAL AND WAREHOUSING 
DISTRICT) TO PID (PLANNED INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, RBC Bank (USA), a North Carolina banking corporation as assignee from 
First National Bank of Central Florida (the “Owner”) is the Owner of that certain parcel of real 
property located, being more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference (the “Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, TSG Development, Inc., a Florida corporation (“Purchaser”), is the contract 
purchaser of the Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Purchaser is authorized to act as agent for the Owner in connection with 
obtaining necessary approvals and permits for developing and operating the Property and 
executing agreements in connection therewith; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Purchaser intends to develop a light industrial and warehousing center 
and other compatible uses (the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owner and Purchaser desire to rezone the Property from I-1 (Light 
Industrial and Warehousing District) to PID (Industrial Planned Unit Development) in order to 
facilitate the development and operating of the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section [118-961] of the City Code, a PID classification is 
appropriate when flexibility is needed to provide proper growth; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the City 
Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the adoption of this 
Ordinance is necessary and appropriate to advance and serve the health, safety and general 
welfare of the citizens of Winter Garden, Florida and encourage proper development within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Commission finds that based on competent, substantial evidence in 
the record, the rezoning approved by this Ordinance meets all applicable criteria for rezoning the 
Property to PID contained within the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan and the Code 



 

 
-2- 

of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, further, the City Commission finds that this Ordinance is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE,  
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA: 
 
 SECTION 1. AUTHORITY. The City Commission of the City of Winter Garden has the 
authority to adopt this Ordinance pursuant to Chapters 163 & 166, Florida Statutes. 
 
 SECTION 2. REZONING.  The zoning classification of the Property, as described in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto, is hereby rezoned from I-1 to PID (Industrial Planned Unit 
Development) subject to the following conditions, provisions and restrictions: 
 

(a) Applicability/Conflict. All development of or within the Property shall comply with 
and is subject to the requirements set forth in this Ordinance. Unless specifically 
identified in this Ordinance, all development on the Property identified in Exhibit “A” 
must comply with the general development standards of the I-1 light industrial and 
warehousing zoning district. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, all 
development of or within the Property shall comply with and is subject to all 
requirements in the City Code, and ordinances, resolutions, and policies of the City. To 
the extent of any express conflicts between the express provisions of this Ordinance 
pertaining to permitted uses, special exception uses, prohibited uses, floor area ratio, 
architectural design criteria, architectural review, and signage and the City Code and 
ordinances, resolutions, and policies of the City, the requirements set forth herein shall 
apply. The Property shall comply with the terms, restrictions and conditions of the 
Declaration of Easements, Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Winter Garden 
Commerce Center recorded on October 31, 2008 at Official Records Book 9783, Page 
6573, et. seq., Public Records of Orange County, Florida (the “Declaration”).  To the 
extent of a conflict between the provisions of the Declaration and this Ordinance, the 
more restrictive provisions as determined by the City shall control and govern against the 
Property and shall be enforceable by the City.  It being the express intent of the City 
Commission that such City Code and ordinances, resolutions, and policies of the City 
shall address and control over other matters not expressly provided for in this Ordinance. 

 
(b) Intent. This Ordinance is intended to provide flexibility in the development of the 
Property in order to provide for proper growth and to guide development and 
construction in an integrated approach in order to promote an enjoyable, aesthetically 
pleasing, pedestrian friendly and economically thriving industrial development. 

 
(c) Permitted Uses. The following uses and structures are permitted on the Property: 

 
(i) Warehousing, wholesaling, and storage facilities within 



 

 
-3- 

enclosed structures. 
(ii) Light manufacturing, processing, and assembly, including 
precision manufacturing, electrical machinery, instrumentation, 
and similar uses.  
(iii) Research and development facilities, provided that all 
activities are within an enclosed structure. 
(iv) Public utility equipment and facilities. 
(v) Commercial Garages, excluding service or repair of passenger 
automobiles for the public. 
(vi) Professional and business offices. 
 

(d) Accessory Uses and Structures. The following accessory uses and structures are 
permitted on the Property in conjunction with legally operating permitted principal uses: 

 
(i) Customary accessory uses clearly incidental and subordinate to 
one of the principal uses. 
(ii) Retail sales of products manufactured and/or processed on the 
premises of a principal use. 
(iii) Offices clearly accessory to one or more principal uses. 
(iv) Outside display or storage on the premises of a principal use; 
provided, however, the design and improvement criteria set forth 
in the following subsection (e) shall apply to any areas used for 
such outside display or storage. 

 
(e) Outside Display and Storage Criteria. The following design and improvement criteria 
shall apply to areas which are used for outside display or storage: 

 
(i) Criteria. All areas used for outside display or storage areas shall 
have designed, constructed and placed along such boundary line a 
wall with a height of six feet (6’) designed to achieve screening 
with a one hundred percent (100%) opacity.  Examples of such 
screening are set forth on Exhibit B.  Items stored outside shall not 
be stored in such a way to cause them to be visible from adjacent 
properties or from any public right-of-way or private roadway.  

(A) Walls.  Walls shall conform to the following requirements: 
(a)Walls shall be six feet (6’) in height; 
(b)Walls may be constructed of concrete block (stuccoed or 
painted), brick, masonry, stone, prefabricated concrete 
fence panel; and 
(c) If security fencing, it shall be placed on the interior side 
of the wall. 

(B) Landscape.  In the event the outside storage exceeds the 
height of the wall (as explained above); a landscape buffer 
shall be used in conjunction with the wall to provide 
appropriate screening. Options for plant material and 



 

 
-4- 

spacing along the wall are as follows: 
(a) Canopy Trees – 1 per 50 feet, minimum plant size shall 
be 12 feet – 14 feet at time of planting (Laurel Oak, 
Shumard Oak, Live Oak, Magnolia, or other material 
sufficient to screen the proposed outdoor storage) 
(b) Understory Trees – 2 per 50 feet, minimum plant size 
shall be 8 feet – 10 feet at time of planting (Loquat, Holly, 
Elm, Crape Myrtle, Ligustrum, Wax Myrtle) 

(C) Materials, merchandise, equipment and any other items 
stored outdoors on a specific lot shall not exceed a 
maximum height of twenty (20) feet or five (5) feet lower 
than the principal structure, whichever is less. 

 
(f) Special Exception Uses. The uses permitted as special exceptions are as follows:  

 
(i) Mini storage warehouse facilities and dwelling unit for 
caretaker or watchman employed on the premises. 
(ii) Vocational and trade schools when adequate parking is 
provided. 

 
(g) Prohibited Uses and Structures. The uses and structures prohibited are as follows: 

 
(i) Residential uses, except as provided under subsection (f)(i) 
above for a special exception use. 
(ii) Motels, hotels, roominghouses. 
(iii) Concrete, block, and asphalt plants including batch plants. 
(iv) Automobile junkyards, scrap yards, and salvage yards. 
(v) Any use deemed objectionable by the City because such use 
may be noxious or injurious because of the production or emission 
of dust, smoke, refuse matter, odor, gas, fumes, noise, vibration or 
similar substances or conditions, or any combination of thereof.  
(vi) Storage of liquefied petroleum products and petrochemical 
products. 
(vii) Pain management clinics.  
(viii) Massage establishments. 
(ix) Offsite signs and billboards.  
(x) Adult entertainment establishments, adult dancing 
establishments, adult bookstores, adult motion picture theaters, 
adult arcades and the production, storage or sale of adult materials, 
or any combination thereof. 
(xi) Any use not specifically permitted or allowed by a special 
exception use by this Ordinance.  
 

(h) Building Architectural Standards.  All buildings and structures under the PID shall 
conform to the following standards (examples of the Building Architectural Standards 



 

 
-5- 

can be evidenced in Exhibit C): 
 

(i) Building elevations facing a right-of-way.  Any building 
elevation that fronts a right-of-way (either within the Property or 
outside of the Property) shall be constructed of one or more of the 
following materials: concrete block (stuccoed or painted), split 
faced concrete block, brick, masonry, EIFS, stone, prefabricated 
metal panels, (as long as they are combined with decorative reveals 
as evidenced in Section (i)(ii) below); or any other similar building 
material deemed compatible by the City Planner. 

(A) Architectural details.  Building elevations facing a right-
of-way shall include one or more of the following architectural 
details: 

(a) Combination of materials; 
(b) Glass entryway; 
(c) Decorative wall reveal; 
(d) Decorative awning(s); 
(e) Elevated or tiered parapet wall; and/or 
(f) Decorative cornice(s). 

 
(ii) Building elevations facing side yards.  Any building elevation 
that faces the side yard may be constructed of one or more of the 
following materials: painted concrete block, split faced concrete 
block, stucco, masonry, EIFS, painted prefabricated metal panels 
or any other similar material.  Any building elevations constructed 
of painted, prefabricated metal panel shall include a minimum of 
eight feet (8’) of concrete block, split faced block or masonry at 
the base of the elevation. However, if elevations facing side yards 
will be visible from the right-of-way following development of 
adjacent lot(s) then the building architectural standards identified 
in paragraph (i) above shall apply. 
 
(iii) Building elevations facing rear yards.  Any building elevation 
that faces the rear yard may be constructed of one or more of the 
following: materials: painted concrete block, stucco, masonry, 
EIFS, painted prefabricated metal panels or any other similar 
material. 
 

(i) Landscape design standards for each individual lot shall comply with the landscape 
design standards for specified commercial corridors in accordance with Chapter 118, 
Article X, Division 3 of the City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances with the 
modifications shown in the attached Exhibit D. 
 



 

 
-6- 

(j) Expiration/Extension.  Expiration of this PID shall be governed in accordance with 
Section 118-830, City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances. Time extensions may be 
granted in accordance with Section 118-829, City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances. 
 
(k) Amendments.   Minor amendments to this Ordinance will be achieved by Resolution of 
the City Commission of the City of Winter Garden.  Major amendments to this Ordinance 
will require approval of the City Commission of the City of Winter Garden by Ordinance. 

SECTION 3. Zoning Map. The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to revise 
the Official Zoning Map of the City of Winter Garden in order to incorporate the rezoning 
enacted by this Ordinance.  
 
 SECTION 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective upon its approval by 
the City Commission. 
 
 SECTION 5. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the final decision of 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance. The City Commission declares that it would have adopted this 
Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion thereof, despite the 
fact that any one or more of section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion would be 
declared invalid or unconstitutional.  
 
FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING: ____________________________ 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING: ____________________________ 
 
ADOPTED this ___ day of _________, 2013, by the City Commission of the City of Winter 
Garden, Florida.  
 

 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 
  



 

 

 EXHIBIT “A” - PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

LOTS 1 – 12, 16 – 20, AND TRACT A OF THE WINTER GARDEN COMMERCE CENTER PHASE I, 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 72, PAGES 133 AND 134, PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.   
 
THE ADDRESSES FOR ABOVE LOTS ARE AS FOLLOWS:  621, 661, 671, 681, 691, 695, 700, 711, 721, 
731, 720, 730, 710, 660, 650, 640, 630 & 620 GARDEN COMMERCE PKWY, WINTER GARDEN, FL 
34787. 

 

AND 
 

 



 

 

 
  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT “B” – EXAMPLES OF 100% OPACITY SCREENING 
 
Example 1 

 
 
Example 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Example 3 

 
 

Example 4 

 
 
 
 
Example 5 



 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT “C” – EXAMPLES OF BUILDING ELEVATIONS 
 
Example 1 

 
 
Example 2 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT “D” – EXCEPTIONS TO CHAPTER 118, ARTICLE X, DIVISION 3 
 

 

 

Sec. 118-1522. - Building open areas. 

 (4) Landscaping shall be required around the perimeter of large strip 
commercial centers or "big box" structures with a continuous building 
length of at least 250′—0″ along the primary street frontage as follows:  
a. Rear/service area does not require planting. 
b. The remaining three sides of building perimeter shall include a 

5′—0″ minimum continuous sidewalk as well as landscape 
planter areas along at least 60 percent of that linear distance.  

c. The required 60 percent landscape coverage shall be in at-grade 
or raised planters at least 5′—0″ deep and 5′—0″ wide. Raised 
planters shall not exceed 24″ overall height.  

d. Planters may be located along building edge, or along street, 
drive or parking edge. Planters along head-in parking shall be 
located at least 2′-0″ clear from edge of curb to allow for 
continuous pedestrian access without stepping in landscape 
area.  

e. All required planters shall be planted 100 percent with shrubs 
and groundcovers. Sod is prohibited.  

f. An average of one canopy tree per 50 linear feet shall be 
required for the remaining three sides of building perimeter. 
Trees may be placed in planter areas.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Sec. 118-1523. - Landscape buffer along public streets. 
 

STATE ROAD 50RIGHT-OF-WAY FRONTAGE BUFFER REQUIREMENTS:  

Canopy Trees (per 70 LF) One per 70 linear feet (LF) or fraction thereof. 

Buffer width (ft.)  15′ 10′ 

CAL   3.53″  4 3″ 

Height  13′-0″ 14 13′-0″ 

Container size  65 gal. 100 65 gal. 

Understory trees (per 100 LF) Three per 100 linear ft. 

Buffer width (ft.)  15′ 10′ 

Tree height (ft.)  11′-0″ 11′-0″ 

Container size  30 gal. 65 gal. 

Buffer width (ft.)  15′ 10′ 

Shrub screen (per 100 LF) 
Quantity of shrubs 

(33) three-gallon plants, per 100 linear feet; a continuous hedge at least 
36 24 inches high at time of planting to create a continuous landscape 
screen with a 90 percent opacity within one year of planting.  

Container size 3 gal. 

Groundcovers (per 100 LF)  

# of plants As needed in combination with shrubs to meet total required landscaped 
area percentage. 

Container size 1 gal. 

Total required % landscaped 
area (shrubs & groundcovers 
vs. sod) 

 50%  75% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Sec. 118-1524. - Landscape buffers between parcels. 

Table 3.4.1 - Rear Yard Landscape Buffer Requirements  

Canopy Trees (per 
100 LF) 

2 per 100 linear feet. 

Tree CAL/height 2″ cal, 1211′ overall height 

Container size 30 gal. 

Understory trees 
(per 100 LF) 

Three per 100 linear feet. 

Tree CAL/Height 1½″-2″ cal, 7′ overall height 

Container size 15 gal. 

Shrub screen (per 
100 LF) 
Quantity of shrubs 

(33) three-gallon plants, 24″ minimum at installation to create 36″—42″ high by 36″-
wide hedge or continuous landscape screen with 90 percent opacity within one 
year of planting.  

Container size  3 gal. 

 

Table 3.4.2 - Side Yard Landscape Buffer Requirements  

Canopy Trees (per 
50 LF) 

1 canopy tree per 50 linear feet 

Tree CAL/height 3″ cal, 1211′ overall height 

Container size 30 gal. 

Shrub screen (per 
50 LF) 
Quantity of shrubs 

(33) three-gallon plants, a minimum 3624″ continuous hedge or landscape screen at 
time of planting with 90 percent opacity within one year of planting.  

Container size  3 gal. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Sec. 118-1529. - Storage areas and site utilities. 

(a) All storage or dumpster/solid waste areas, except when permitted to be located 
within an outside display and storage area as described by Ordinance13-42, 
shall be designed with a six-foot masonry wall. The wall shall be of a decorative "split 
face" concrete masonry, "Norman" brick or standard concrete masonry clad with 
painted stucco or other masonry veneer. The wall shall include a continuous cap 
feature and closing gate.  

(b) In addition to the masonry enclosure, storage and dumpster/solid waste areas shall 
be treated with a 24-inch high planted hedge that shall reach 36″—42″ height and 90 
percent opacity within one year.  

(c) Other above-ground utility elements such as pull boxes, transformers, and backflow 
preventers shall be located and designed to permit convenient maintenance access, 
painted dark green and screened with a 24-inch planted hedge that shall reach 36″—
42″ height and 90 percent opacity within one year.  

(d) Long-term storage containers are prohibited unless located on a parcel with a fully 
screened masonry or brick enclosure designed and constructed for that purpose.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 9 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  August 1, 2013 MEETING DATE: August 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 315 E Fullers Cross Road (PRELIMINARY PLAT) 
 PROJECT NAME Highland Groves Subdivision 
 PARCEL ID# 11-22-27-0000-00-003 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a Preliminary Plat for 186 single family 

residential lots in the Highland Groves PUD Subdivision 
  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: L.F. Roper Trust 
  
CURRENT ZONING: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: LR (Low Density Residential) 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 Applicant proposes Preliminary Plat for 186 single-family lots.  The 

proposed Preliminary Plat is consistent with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan and the City of Winter Garden Code of 
Ordinances.  The proposed Preliminary Plat is consistent with the 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) Zoning of the property. 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 City staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of 186 

single-family lots in the Highland Groves PUD Subdivision subject 
to the conditions of the attached Staff Report. 

  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Submit Preliminary Plat and Final Engineering Plans 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 Preliminary Plat 
 



LOCATION MAP 

315 E Fullers Cross Road 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

 



 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:   LAURA SMITH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE:   AUGUST 1, 2013 
SUBJECT:   PRELIMINARY PLAT 
   315 East Fullers Cross Road (81+/- ACRES) 
    PARCEL ID #  11-22-27-0000-00-003 
  
 
APPLICANT:  L.F. Roper Trust 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property, located on the north side of Fullers Cross Road, east of Lake Apopka and 
west of E. Crown Point Road, is approximately 81± acres. The map below depicts the location of 
the subject property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits. 

 



Highland Groves Subdivision 
E. Fullers Cross Road (81 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
August 1, 2013 

Page 2 
 

 

The applicant is requesting approval of Preliminary Plat of the 81± acre property which is the 
Highland Groves PUD Subdivision for 186 single family residential lots. The subject property is 
located within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits, and carries the zoning designation 
PUD (Planned Unit Development) in the City of Winter Garden. The subject property is 
designated Low Density Residential on the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan. 

EXISTING USE 
The subject property is primarily used for agricultural purposes (citrus grove) and contains a 
pump house and fenced in storage area related to the acrigultural activity.  
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located on the northwest side of the subject property is in the process of being 
annexed into the City of Winter Garden and proposed to be incorporated into the proposed PUD 
in the future, however presently it is unimproved vacant land located in un-incorporated Orange 
County with A-2 Zoning. The property located on the northeast side of the subject property is 
owned by the City of Ocoee and is also unimproved vacant land located in un-incorporated 
Orange County with A-2 Zoning.  The properties located to the south are single family 
residential homes within the City of Winter Garden with R-1 Zoning.  The property to the east is 
Fullers Crossing a single family residential community in the City of Winter Garden zoned R-
1B.  The subject property is bordered on the west by Lake Apopka.  
 

PROPOSED USE 
The applicant proposes to develop the 81 ± acre site into a residential planned unit development 
containing 186 single-family dwelling units ranging in size from 75’x115’ to 100’x115’. The 
proposed lot size mixture is: 

Lot Size # of lots 
100’x115’ 13 
95’x115’ 24 
90’x115’ 9 
80’x115’ 12 
75’x115’ 128 

The proposed subdivision will be a non-gated community with gross density proposed at 2.29 
dwelling units per acre, the LR-Low Density Residential Future Land Use Designation allows up 
to 6 dwelling units per acre. The proposed subdivision will contain an active recreational park 
(tot-lot and ½ basketball court) and a passive recreation area (walking trails and open space) and 
14.2+/- acres of wetlands preserved for conservation. 
 

SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends conditional approval of the proposed Preliminary Plat subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. The environmental report states that gopher tortoises are active on site and that there is a 
possibility of sand skinks.  Provide approvals from FFWCC prior to construction that these 
species have been addressed. 

 



Highland Groves Subdivision 
E. Fullers Cross Road (81 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
August 1, 2013 

Page 3 
 

 

2. The geotechnical report states that organic soils are present near the lake shoreline.  Provide the 
muck delineation overlay on the final construction plans to ensure that these areas will not fall 
on building lots without the muck being removed. 

3. Walls and landscaping shall be located within a landscape and wall tract, to be maintained by 
the HOA; wall and landscape tract shall be outside of the existing R/W. 

4. All proposed easements shall be 30’ minimum width for sanitary, water and storm; 
improvements shall be centered within the easement.  Common areas not abutting right-of-
way shall include a tract (not easement) for access and maintenance. 

5. Utilities:  Minimum 8” potable water (internal), 8” reuse water, and minimum 6” sanitary force 
main are required.  Utilities shall be extended the full property frontage per Code; Upsizing 
agreement may be necessary for extending the 16” water main on Fullers Cross Road; Water 
and Reuse lines shall be looped and connected into the existing stubouts in Fullers Crossing.  
Reuse main shall be extended on Fullers Cross Road to connect to the existing stubout 
approximately 640 feet east of the entrance.  Force main shall be 6”; all internal water mains 
shall be 8” minimum (see comments from Public Services). 

6. Minimum 5 ft wide utility and drainage easements shall be provided on each side lot line; 10’ 
drainage and utility easements required adjacent to R/W. 

7. Some of this property appears to be “A” type soils and may require adherence to the Wekiva 
protection regulations.  Wekiva Protection requirements as outlined in the Comprehensive 
Plan shall be met, especially for drainage.  Geotechnical report indicates an absence of Karst 
features. 

8. Streetlighting shall be pursuant to City Code, including frontage on Fullers Cross Road, 
meeting dark skies requirements (Code Section 118-1536(k)).  Submit streetlighting plan from 
Progress Energy prior to preconstruction meeting. 

9. All irrigation on the site shall be designed to be supplied by reclaimed water (minimum 8” 
internal main size – as shown).  

10. Permits from SJRWMD and FDEP (water, wastewater and NPDES) are required prior to 
issuance of site or building permits.  

11. Sidewalks internal to the development shall be constructed adjacent to all lands not containing 
building lots prior to final acceptance.  This shall include all retention, conservation, lift station, 
or recreation tracts, abutting roadways, pedestrian walkways, etc.  Sidewalks external to the 
development shall be constructed upon final completion. 

12. Docks:  Response indicates that no docks are proposed with the initial development, but 
requests that each lakefront lot owner and/or HOA have the ability to permit and construction 
their own docks in the future if desired.  Docks shall comply with City of Winter Garden 
Ordinance 11-20 and will require separate permit approval through the Building Department. 

Conditional approval of the Preliminary Plat will allow the owner to proceed with development 
plans as well as the final plat. 
 
 
 
MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 



Highland Groves Subdivision 
E. Fullers Cross Road (81 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
August 1, 2013 

Page 4 
 

 

Highland Groves 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ZONING MAP 
Highland Groves 

 



Highland Groves Subdivision 
E. Fullers Cross Road (81 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
August 1, 2013 

Page 5 
 

 

 
 

FUTURE LAND USE  MAP 
Highland Groves 

 



Highland Groves Subdivision 
E. Fullers Cross Road (81 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
August 1, 2013 

Page 6 
 

 

 
END OF STAFF REPORT 





























THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 10 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  August 1, 2013 MEETING DATE: August 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 16303 Marsh Road (PRELIMINARY PLAT) 
 PROJECT NAME Crooked Lake Preserve 
 PARCEL ID# 05-23-27-0000-00-005 & 05-23-27-0000-00-008 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a Preliminary Plat for 140 single family 

residential lots in the Crooked Lake Preserve UVPUD Subdivision 
  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Crooked Lake Holdings 
  
CURRENT ZONING: UVPUD (Urban Village PUD) 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: Urban Village 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 Applicant proposes Preliminary Plat for 140 single-family lots.  The 

proposed Preliminary Plat is consistent with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan and the City of Winter Garden Code of 
Ordinances.  The proposed Preliminary Plat is consistent with the 
Urban Village Planned Unit Development (UVPUD) Zoning of the 
property. 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 City staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of 140 

single-family lots in the Crooked Lake Preserve UVPUD 
Subdivision subject to the conditions of the attached Staff Report. 

  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Submit Final Engineering Plans and Final Plat for Review 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 Preliminary Plat 
 



LOCATION MAP 

16303 Marsh Road 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

 

 

 

  



 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:   LAURA SMITH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE:   AUGUST 1, 2013 
SUBJECT:   PRELIMINARY PLAT 
   16303 Marsh Road (105.68+/- ACRES) 

Parcel ID# 05-23-27-0000-00-005 & 05-23-27-0000-00-008  
 
APPLICANT:  Crooked Lake Holdings, LLC  
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Land Development Regulations, Comprehensive Plan, and Future Land Use Map 
The subject property, located on the north and south side of Marsh Road east of Williams Road 
and west of Avalon Road at 16303 Marsh Road, is approximately 78.29± acres. The map below 
depicts the location of the subject property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits: 

 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
August 1, 2013 

Page 2 
 

 

The applicant is requesting approval of Preliminary Plat of the 78.29± acre property which is 
Crooked Lake Preserve UVPUD Subdivision for 140 single family residential lots. The subject 
property is located within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits, and carries the zoning 
designation UVPUD (Urban Village Planned Unit Development) in the City of Winter Garden. 
The subject property is designated Urban Village on the Future Land Use Map of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

EXISTING USE 
The subject property is vacant unimproved land presently used for agriculture (timberland) and 
does not contain any structures. 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The subject property is bordered on the north side by John’s Lake. The property located to the 
east of the subject property is the Hickory Hammock residential subdivision currently under site 
construction which is zoned PUD in the City of Winter Garden. The property located to the west 
of the subject property on the north side of Marsh Road is the Waterside at John’s Lake 
residential subdivision currently under site construction which is zoned UVPUD in the City of 
Winter Garden. The property located to the south and west of the subject property on the south 
side of Marsh Road is vacant unimproved land presently used for agriculture (timberland & 
citrus grove), this property was recently annexed into the City and is presently the subject of a 
Future Land Use Map Amendment to designate the property as Urban Village on the City’s 
Future Land Use Map however until that amendment is adopted the property retains its Orange 
County Future Land Use Designation of Village.  
The subject property and surrounding properties to the west are all located within the JPA 
expansion area as adopted by the Sixth Amendment to the Restated Interlocal Agreement for 
Joint Planning Area between Orange County and the City of Winter Garden. Additionally, the 
subject property as well as many of the surrounding properties (a total of 596 acres) were 
annexed into the City of Winter Garden by Ordinance 07-34. At the time the properties were 
annexed into the City they were not assigned zoning or future land use designation in the City of 
Winter Garden. Subsequently, as part of the EAR based amendments to the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan which were adopted in 2010, the subject property and many of the 
surrounding properties (a total of 642.73 acres) were assigned a future land use designation of 
Urban Village on the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  
 

PROPOSED USE 
The applicant is requesting preliminary plat approval to move forward with development plans 
and the final plat.  The applicant proposes to develop the 78.29 ± acre site into an urban village 
planned unit development (UVPUD) of 140 single family dwelling units, with 3 recreational 
park areas, and open space areas. 
 

SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends conditional approval of the proposed Preliminary Plat subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. Proposed roundabout on Marsh Road:  Size and configuration will be determined at time of final 
engineering; radius, number of lanes, etc. shall safely accommodate traffic and be reviewed by the 
City’s Roundabout Consultant.  Additional right-of-way may be required. 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
August 1, 2013 

Page 3 
 

 

 
2. Utilities:  As discussed, the project will need to install a minimum 16” water main, 12” sanitary 

force main, and a 12” reclaimed water main on Marsh Road to serve the development.  These lines 
will need to be extended to proposed or existing stub-outs near the intersection of Avalon and 
Marsh Roads, at the Developer’s expense – coordinate with the Waterside development 
immediately to the west.  Participation in cost-sharing with other developments will be required as 
discussed at DRC. 
 

3. Coordinate with the adjacent Waterside and Hickory Hammock developments on the proposed 
roadway connections. 

 
4. Proposed 5 ft building setbacks will only be approved provided that no obstructions of any kind are 

allowed within the 5 ft setback area.  Minimum 5 ft wide utility and drainage easements shall be 
provided on each side lot line. 

 
5. If gated, the streets will be private and maintained by the HOA.  While portions of the right-of-way 

may be dedicated to the City, maintenance of special pavements, landscaping, hardscaping, etc. 
shall be performed by the HOA under a R/W maintenance agreement.  This would include the 
roundabout island.  If street trees are allowed, the HOA will be responsible for their installation, 
maintenance and removal if necessary. 

 
6. Docks shall comply with City of Winter Garden Ordinance 11-20 (as codified in Chapter 118 of the 

City Code). 
 

7. Some of this property appears to be “A” type soils and may require adherence to the Wekiva 
protection regulations (along with the Karst feature).  Wekiva Protection requirements as outlined 
in the Comprehensive Plan shall be met, especially for drainage and Karst protection.  
 

8. The Lakefront water quality BMP will need further definition and detail on final construction 
plans (slopes, depth, location, maintenance entity, etc.).  Typical section of Swale “D” has been 
provided, which shall be a tract/drainage easement maintained by the HOA. 
 

9. Provide Sand Skink study and clearance from FFWCC. 
 

10. As shown, the proposed stormwater pond for Marsh Road/CR 545 (Tract J) is to be granted to the 
City as a drainage easement, to be designed, constructed by, and maintained by, the City. 

 
11. A Developers Agreement addressing the phasing, utilities and other commitments of the 

development’s master plan has been approved by the City Commission and shall be recorded prior 
to the issuance of any site or building permits. 

 
12. All irrigation on the site shall be designed to be supplied by reclaimed water (minimum 8” internal 

main size). 
 

13. Typical Pavement Section & General Notes:  Location and type of street trees will be reviewed 
with final plans.  If allowed, street trees will be the responsibility of the HOA, not the City, 
regardless if the project is gated/private or public.  
 
 
 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
August 1, 2013 

Page 4 
 

 

14. All proposed easements shall be 30’ minimum width for sanitary, water and storm; improvements 
shall be centered within the easement.  Common areas not abutting right-of-way shall include a 
tract (not easement) for access and maintenance. There will be no street trees permitted between 
the back of curb and sidewalk, all strees must be located on the individual lot behind the 
sidewalk. 
 

15. The 100 year flood boundary is shown to encroach on many of the lots abutting Johns Lake.  A 
LOMR shall be filed with FEMA as a condition of final plat approval for any areas requiring fill 
within the 100 year flood zone.  Fill within the 100 year flood zone will only be allowed if 
compensating storage is provided. 

Conditional approval of the Preliminary Plat will allow the owner to proceed with development 
plans as well as the final plat. 
MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
Crooked Lake Preserve 

 
 

 
 
 
 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
August 1, 2013 

Page 5 
 

 

ZONING MAP 
Crooked Lake Preserve 

 
 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
August 1, 2013 

Page 6 
 

 

FUTURE LAND USE  MAP 
Crooked Lake Preserve 

 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 



june engineering
consultants, inc.

Certificate of Authorization #00008507

Ph. 407-905-8180

14 S. Main Street
Winter Garden, FL. 34787

Fax 407-905-6232

K
:
\
A

C
T
I
V

E
 
J
O

B
S
\
0
4
4
6
 
C

r
a
-
M

a
r
 
G

r
o

v
e
s
\
C

r
a
 
M

a
r
 
P

r
e
l
i
m

i
n

a
r
y
 
P

l
a
n

 
0
7
2
4
1
3
.
d

w
g

,
 
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
1
3
 
4
:
0
5
:
3
0
 
P

M



june engineering
consultants, inc.

Certificate of Authorization #00008507

Ph. 407-905-8180

14 S. Main Street
Winter Garden, FL. 34787

Fax 407-905-6232

K
:
\
A

C
T
I
V

E
 
J
O

B
S
\
0
4
4
6
 
C

r
a
-
M

a
r
 
G

r
o

v
e
s
\
C

r
a
 
M

a
r
 
P

r
e
l
i
m

i
n

a
r
y
 
P

l
a
n

 
0
7
2
4
1
3
.
d

w
g

,
 
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
1
3
 
4
:
0
5
:
3
3
 
P

M





june engineering
consultants, inc.

Certificate of Authorization #00008507

Ph. 407-905-8180

132 W. Plant Street, Suite 200
Winter Garden, FL. 34787

Fax 407-905-6232

K
:
\
A

C
T
I
V

E
 
J
O

B
S
\
0
4
4
6
 
C

r
a
-
M

a
r
 
G

r
o

v
e
s
\
C

r
a
 
M

a
r
 
P

r
e
l
i
m

i
n

a
r
y
 
P

l
a
n

 
0
7
2
4
1
3
.
d

w
g

,
 
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
1
3
 
4
:
0
5
:
4
8
 
P

M



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 11 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  August 1, 2013 MEETING DATE: August 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
  
ISSUE: Amending Policy 1-1.2.12 of the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive 

Plan to increase the number of acres of land within the Urban Village 
Land Use Category and redefine the number of acres for Residential Use 
and Natural Use within the Urban Village Land Use Category and to make 
other amendments to Policy 1-1.2.12 concerning annexations and 
clarifying the intent of Policy 1-1.2.12 with regard to project specific 
rezonings.   

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
SUMMARY: 
 The proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment is in response to 

Technical Assistance Comments received from the Florida 
Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) regarding a Large 
Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment to the Future Land Use 
Map which was transmitted to the DEO in June 2013. 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 13-55, with first reading 

by the City Commission scheduled for August 8, 2013. 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Ordinance 13-55 
  
 



 
Ordinance 13-14 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE 13-55 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING POLICY 1-1.2.12 OF THE FUTURE 
LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE WINTER GARDEN 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO INCREASE THE NUMBER 
OF ACRES OF LAND WITHIN THE URBAN VILLAGE 
LAND USE CATEGORY AND REDEFINE THE NUMBER 
OF ACRES FOR RESIDENTIAL USE AND NATURAL USE 
WITHIN THE URBAN VILLAGE LAND USE CATEGORY 
AND MAKING OTHER AMENDMENTS TO ADDRESS 
ANNEXATIONS, CLARIFY THE INTENT OF POLICY 1-
1.2.12 CONCERNING PROJECT SPECIFIC REZONINGS 
TO URBAN VILLAGE PUD; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 13th of June, 1991, the City Commission of the City of Winter 
Garden adopted Ordinance 91-16 which adopted a new Comprehensive Plan for the City 
of Winter Garden, and on the 24th of June, 2010, the City Commission of the City of 
Winter Garden adopted Ordinance 10-19 readopting and amending the Comprehensive 
Plan for the City of Winter Garden; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Winter Garden desires to update the Future Land Use 
Element of said plan concerning Policy 1-1.2.12 Urban Village to account for additional 
properties that have been annexed into the City of Winter Garden that are within the JPA-
6 area as shown on Exhibit “B” of the Sixth Amendment to the Restated Interlocal 
Agreement for Joint Planning Area Between Orange County and the City of Winter 
Garden, Dated January 24, 2007; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Winter Garden desires to make further revisions to Policy 
1-1.2.12 Urban Village consistent to the City Commission’s original intent and purpose for 
creating the Urban Village future land use; and 

  
 WHEREAS, the City of Winter Garden's Local Planning Agency and City 
Commission have conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings pursuant to 
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, regarding the adoption of this ordinance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Winter Garden Local Planning Agency and the City 
Commission each find this Ordinance and the comprehensive plan amendment contained 
therein to be internally consistent with the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan; 
and now, therefore, 
 
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  



 
Ordinance 13-14 

Page 2 of 3 

 
SECTION I.  Future Land Use Element Amendment.   Policy 1-1.2.12 of the Future 
Land Use Element of the Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan is hereby amended to 
read as follows (words that are stricken out are deletions; words that are underlined are 
additions): 

 
Policy 1-1.2.12:  Urban Village.  Properties designated with the Urban Village 
land use category are required to be developed at a floor area ratio not greater 
than 0.3, and a residential density not greater than 4 dwelling units per acre, 
except in the Village Center where the residential density shall be not greater 
than 12 units per acre.  This land use designation is limited to those 658805 ± 
acres identified on Figure 1.2.  These parcels are located within the JPA-6 area 
as shown on Exhibit “B” of the Sixth Amendment to the Restated Interlocal 
Agreement for Joint Planning Area Between Orange County and the City of 
Winter Garden, Dated January 24, 2007 and were formally part of the Horizon 
West development in unincorporated Orange County that proposed the same 
type of development.  Development in this area shall be characterized by a 
community Village structure that includes a Village, Village Center, and 
neighborhoods that may vary in size to facilitate recreation and pedestrian traffic 
while preserving natural systems and shall follow the development program 
below: 

Use Acres Amount 
Residential 531 641 ± 2,140 2,580 
Commercial 20 ± 115,000 Sq Ft 

Natural 107 144 ± N/A 
 
Notes: All parcel acreages and natural delineations are estimated. 

Actual determination of acreage shall be made at time of the project 
specific Urban Village PUD rezonings.  Through the annexation and initial 
comprehensive plan future land use map designation process involving parcels 
within the JPA-6 area annexed into the City’s municipal boundaries, the City 
Commission may designate additional parcels with the Urban Village future land 
use designation and accordingly, make administrative adjustments to the above 
referenced acreages, densities and intensities.  
 
Development in this future land use shall also be subject to the land 
development regulations adopted by the City for found in the Urban Village PUD 
zoning designation and project specific Urban Village PUDs.  The City 
Commission shall have the authority when approving project specific Urban 
Village PUDs to not count accessory dwelling units towards maximum residential 
densities of this policy. The zoning classifications that is consistent with the 
Urban Village land use designation is the Urban Village PUD and INT.   

 
SECTION II.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective 31 days after 
adoption, unless the Ordinance is timely challenged pursuant to § 163.3187(5), Fla. Stat., 
in which case, the Ordinance shall not be effective until the state land planning agency or 



 
Ordinance 13-14 

Page 3 of 3 

the Administrative Commission, respectively, issues a final order determining that the 
adopted Ordinance is in compliance. 
  
SECTION III.  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, then 
such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
  
 
FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2013. 

 
ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 


	Item #4.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item #5.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item #6.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item #7.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item #8.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item #9.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item #10.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item #11.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM


